
Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.  The 
Council will webcast the meeting.

Please ask for:
Marie Lowe

16 April 2019

Dear Councillor

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE to be held on Thursday 25 April 2019 at 
7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, 
Herts, AL8 6AE

Yours faithfully

Corporate Director
Public Protection, Planning and Governance

A G E N D A
PART 1

1.  SUBSTITUTIONS 

To note any substitution of Members made in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules 19-22.

2.  APOLOGIES 

3.  MINUTES 

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 28 March 2019 
(circulated separately).

4.  NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 11 
AND ANY ITEMS WITHDRAWN FROM THE AGENDA 

5.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS 

To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on the Agenda.

Public Document Pack



6.  WELWYN RUGBY FOOTBALL CLUB, HOBBS WAY, WELWYN GARDEN CITY 
AL8 6HX - 6/2017/0225/FULL - RETENTION OF 4 X 15M HIGH FLOODLIGHT 
COLUMNS AND LAMPS MEASURING A FURTHER 0.5 METRES (Pages 5 - 16)

Report of the Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance).

7.  12 TOLMERS GARDENS, CUFFLEY, POTTERS BAR, EN6 4JE - 
6/2018/3125/FULL - ERECTION OF 8 APARTMENTS FOLLOWING 
DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUNGALOW (Pages 17 - 36)

Report of the Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance).

8.  APPEAL DECISIONS (Pages 37 - 40)

Report of the Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance).

9.  PLANNING UPDATE - FUTURE PLANNING APPLICATIONS (Pages 41 - 64)

Report of the Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance).

10.  DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT - JANUARY - 
MARCH 2019 (Pages 65 - 74)

Report of the Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance).

11.  SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION 

12.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The Committee is asked to resolve:

That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for Item 13 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100(A)(3) and Paragraphs 2 (Information likely to reveal the identity of 
an individual), and 6 (Statutory notice or order)  of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
said Act (as amended).

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.



PART II

13.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN EXEMPT NATURE AT THE DISCRETION OF 
THE CHAIRMAN 

Circulation: Councillors J.Boulton (Chairman)
S.Wrenn (Vice-Chairman)
S.Boulton
H.Bromley
J.Caliskan
A.Chesterman
S.Elam

P.Hebden
S.Kasumu
M.Larkins
T.Lyons
S.Markiewicz
P.Shah

Corporate Management Team
Press and Public (except Part II Items)

If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Marie Lowe, 
Governance Service on 01707 357443 or email – democracy@welhat.gov.uk 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Part I
Executive Member: Councillor S. Boulton

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE – 25 APRIL 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE)

6/2017/0225/FULL

WELWYN RUGBY FOOTBALL CLUB, HOBBS WAY, WELWYN GARDEN CITY 
AL8 6HX

RETENTION OF 4 X 15M HIGH FLOODLIGHT COLUMNS AND LAMPS 
MEASURING A FURTHER 0,5 METRES

APPLICANT: Mr M Elliott

(Howlands)

1       Site Description

1.1 Welwyn Rugby Club comprises a large field with three rugby pitches and a 
clubhouse building and car park adjacent to the Hobbs Way access to the 
site, in the eastern corner of the premises. The site is bound on all sides by 
residential properties. These are screened from the rugby club by mature 
vegetation, though it is sparse at certain points.

1.2 The application is for the retention of 4 x 15m high floodlight columns and 
lamps serving the northern- most of the rugby pitches (adjacent to the 
Turmore Dale, Scotts View and Handside Lane properties). The lighting 
columns are sited two either side of the rugby pitch – two fairly centrally 
located within the site and two adjacent to the boundary of the site with Scotts 
View. The closest of these two is around two metres from the rear boundary 
of 3 Scotts View.

1.3 The lamps would be fitted with cowls to limit the light spill from them. The 
cowls would be attached to the top of the columns below the lamps and 
would be 200mm high and 500mm wide. The cowls are only proposed on the 
two columns adjacent to the Scotts View properties.

1.4 The floodlights are typically used on Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday 
nights from 7pm to 9pm during the months of October to March.

2 The Proposal

2.1 Planning permission is sought for the retention of the re- sited 4 x 15m high 
floodlight columns to the pitch used for training purposes. Each of them has 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



two floodlights measuring a further 0.5m high. The number of pitches on the 
site has remained unchanged.

2.2 The application was submitted further to the grant of permission for the 
replacement of 8 floodlights in July 2016 under ref. 6/2016/0910/FLL. The 
lights installed following that permission were not installed in the approved 
locations. The company undertaking the installation sited the new columns 
away from the previous existing ones to avoid having to break out the existing 
concrete foundation bases. The installed lights are between 1.5m and 6m 
from their approved positions but are the same height as those approved.

3 Reason for Committee Consideration

3.1 This application is presented to the Development Management Committee 
because it has been called in by Cllr Bromley. She states;

‘The new floodlights are significantly higher than the ones which they 
replaced, by some 7m, and they are also in different positions to the original 
lights. This has caused significant harm to the residents and the general 
amenity of the area. The original application did not mention the floodlights 
being in different positions. This is impacting upon the Conservation and the 
EMS area. There is substantial visual intrusion day and night. At night, the 
light spill is far worse than previously, despite the rugby club saying it would 
be less. This is not the case. The club also seems to be contravening the 
permission given as to when they may be used’.

4 Relevant Planning History

4.1 6/2016/0910/FULL Replacement of 8 floodlights. Granted. This permission 
granted permission for two floodlights each on 4 x 15m high columns.  

N6/2008/0264/FP Installation of 4 floodlights. Granted.

5 Relevant Planning Policy

5.1 National Planning Policy Framework 2018 (NPPF) 

5.2 Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005 (Local Plan)

5.3 Supplementary Design Guidance 2005 (SDG)

5.4 Draft Local Plan Proposed Submission 2016 (Emerging Local Plan 2016)

6 Site Designation 

6.1 The site lies within Welwyn Garden City Conservation Area within the built up 
area of Welwyn Garden City as designated in the Welwyn Hatfield District 
Plan 2005. 

6.2 The site is designated as Urban Open Land in the District Plan.

Page 6



7 Representations Received 

7.1 The application was advertised by means of neighbour notification letters and 
a site notice and a press advert. Eleven letters of objection have been 
received from the occupiers of nos. 2, 3, 4 and 9 Scotts View and nos. 131, 
137, 139 and 143 Handside Lane;

 The lamps cause light spill, particularly from their rear, and are visually 
intrusive. The level of light spill contrasts dramatically with the planning 
application which advised that light spill would be reduced;

 The old posts were 8m, and were below the trees and both the visual and 
light impact was negligible;

 The ‘as installed’ location has increased the visual impact of the columns and 
the impact they have had on the amenity of nearby homes as they are closer 
together and nearer to the homes. This has increased the visual impact and 
the level of light spill;

 As a consequence of the ‘as installed’ locations of the columns closer 
together, the evening training sessions (three times a week) take place closer 
to the centre of the pitch: this has had a greater noise impact for the residents 
of 2, 3 and 4 Scotts View;

 The columns should be returned to their original positions which would be in 
accordance with the Rugby England guidance ‘Floodlighting Installation and 
Management Guide’, which advises that a in four lighting column 
arrangement, the columns should be aligned with the 22 yard pitch lines, and 
not where the columns are currently placed;

 The increased height of the columns has had an adverse impact upon the 
Conservation Area, contrary to Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Building 
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. The columns have failed to preserve or 
enhance the Conservation Area and are entirely inappropriate to the area;

 The columns should be reduced to 8m or 10m in height: the manufacturers of 
the columns have advised that this can be achieved and has been done at 
other clubs;

 The National Planning Policy Framework advises by encouraging good 
design, planning policies and decisions should limit the impact of light 
pollution from artificial light in local amenity, intrinsically dark landscapes and 
nature conservation. No consideration has been given to this guidance in the 
original application or to the amenity of local residents;

 Although a cowl has been suggested as a way of reducing light spill from the 
columns, there is concern regarding the visual impact of them;

 The lights are only used for training purposes and do not need to generate 
the light intensity required for matches. This would reduce light spill for the 
neighbours whilst still providing much improved lighting for the club;

 The lighting columns are dangerous as they have unprotected metal edges;
 While we support the rugby club to upgrade their facilities and maintain a 

thriving sports facility for the community to enjoy, this should not be done at 
the expense of the nearby residents;

 The hours of usage of the lights have exceeded the hours permitted by 
condition;

 The original committee report was incorrect regarding the siting of the 
columns is relation to their approved positions. 

Page 7



7.2 Further to the receipt of the plans of the cowling proposed to limit the light 
spill from the lamps, they were advertised by means of neighbour notification 
letters. Any letters of objection received will be reported verbally at the 
meeting.   

8 Consultations Received 

8.1 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council – Public Health and Protection, Sport 
England, Hertfordshire Transport Programmes & Strategy and Herts 
Biological Records Centre have no objections to the application.

9 Analysis

9.1 The main planning issues to be considered are:

1. The quality of design and impact on the character and appearance 
of the area and on the Welwyn Garden City Conservation Area

2. The impact on the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers and 
future occupiers

3. The impact on Urban Open Land 
4. Highway safety, car and cycle parking 
5. Other considerations 

i) Ecology

1. The quality of design and impact on the character and appearance of 
the area and on the Welwyn Garden City Conservation Area

9.2 The NPPF emphasises the importance of good design in context. The 
relevant policy of the Council’s Local Plan, D2, is broadly consistent with the 
aspirations of the NPPF. The policy requires proposals to feature high quality 
design and is specifically supplemented by the Council’s Supplementary 
Design Guidance (SDG). With regards to Conservation Areas, paragraph 196 
of the NPPF states,

‘Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the 
significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed 
against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, 
securing its optimum viable use’.

9.3 Section 72 of the Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act (1990) states 
that ‘Special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or the appearance of that area’.

9.4 The principle of the columns and the lights was considered acceptable at the 
time of the application in 2016 (ref. 6/2016/0910/FULL) and the only element 
that has changed about them is their location (between 1.5m and 6m from 
their approved positions) and the inclusion of the proposed cowls. The 
columns and the lights are no taller than those approved in 2016. The re-sited 

Page 8



columns have not harmed the character and appearance of the rugby club, 
the street scene or the wider area. The columns are not materially more 
prominent within the area than if they were in their approved locations and 
accordingly, objection is not raised to them. The cowls, though of a certain 
visual impact, would, at 200mm high and 500mm wide, be limited in their size 
and extent. They may be conditioned to match the colour of the existing 
lamps to further limit their visual impact. The columns have caused less than 
substantial harm to the significance of the Welwyn Garden City Conservation 
Area as it is only their siting that has changed from the approved scheme on 
the site. The re- sited columns have preserved the character and appearance 
of the Welwyn Garden City Conservation Area. The cowls would also cause 
less than substantial harm to the significance of the Conservation Area and 
would preserve its character and appearance. The recreational benefits of the 
development are considered to outweigh any limited harm caused by the 
relocation of the lighting columns and the introduction of the cowling. The 
floodlights and cowls are therefore considered acceptable in accordance with 
Policy D2 of the Local Plan and the NPPF.

9.5 The comments received from the neighbours regarding the old columns being 
8m high with negligible visual and light impact are noted. However, 
permission was granted in 2016 for the lighting columns of the same height 
as in this application. The issue being considered in this application is the 
acceptability of the re- sited columns and not their height. It is not considered 
that the floodlights have had a materially greater visual impact in their as built 
locations than they would have had in their as approved locations. The 
cowling would also not have a significant visual impact.   

2. The impact on the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers and 
future occupiers

9.6 The NPPF, Policy D1 of the District Plan and the SDG require development 
to be of a high standard of design and to have an acceptable impact upon the 
amenities of the adjoining properties and to maintain residential amenity. The 
re- sited columns are of the same design as those approved under the 2016 
permission and are therefore of the same high standard of design, in 
accordance with relevant policy and guidance.

9.7    Policy R19 of the District Plan refers to noise pollution and states ‘Planning   
permission will be refused if the development is likely

i. To generate unacceptable noise or vibration for other land uses; or               
ii. To be affected by unacceptable noise or vibration from other land uses’.

9.8      While concern has been raised that the re- sited lighting columns have 
resulted in the players training closer to the centre of the pitch in the evening 
sessions and this has resulted in a greater noise impact for the residents of 2, 
3 and 4 Scotts View, it is not considered that such an impact is material. The 
noise levels generated by the players and their impact upon the neighbouring 
properties cannot reasonably be considered to be materially different due to 
the re- sited location of the columns. The noise impacts of the development 

Page 9



were considered acceptable at the time of the 2016 permission and they are 
considered to be so now, in accordance with Policy R19 of the District Plan.

9.9     Policy R20 of the District Plan refers to light pollution and states ‘External 
lighting scheme proposals will only be approved where it can be 
demonstrated that all of the following criteria can be satisfied;

i. The scheme proposed is the minimum needed for security and operational
purposes or to enhance the external appearance of the building to be
illuminated;
ii. Glare and light spillage are minimised;
iii. The amenity of residential areas is not adversely affected;
iv. The visual character of historic buildings and conservation areas are not
adversely affected;
v. There would be no adverse impact upon the character or openness of the
countryside and green belt;
vi. There would be no adverse effects on ecology and the natural 
environment including wildlife; and
vii. There would be no dazzling or distraction of drivers using nearby roads’.

9.10  The level of light spill from the lights would be reduced from that which arises 
from the approved columns as a result of the introduction of the cowls. The 
relative siting of the columns is as follows;

 The column adjacent to 4 and 5 Scotts View is sited 4m to the north west of 
the location approved in 2016 and 4.2m to the south east of the original 
column

 The column adjacent to 2 and 3 Scotts View is sited 1.5m to the north west of 
the location approved in 2016 and 2.8m to the north west of the original 
column

 The southern- most column (on the far side of the pitch from Scotts View) is 
sited 6m to the north west of the location approved in 2016 and 1.8m to the 
north west of the original column

 The western- most column (on the far side of the pitch from Scotts View) is 
sited 4m to the north west of the location approved in 2016 and 3.2m to the 
south east of the original column          

9.11   The columns are therefore not sited materially differently with regard to the 
neighbouring Scotts View properties. The columns to the rear of Scotts View 
have not been installed closer together than as approved. The columns on 
the far side of the pitch from Scotts View have been sited closer together 
though. While the siting of the floodlights may have an impact upon where the 
training on the pitches occurs, it is not considered that this has had a material 
impact upon the levels of noise experienced by nos. 2, 3 and 4 Scotts View 
(or any of the other surrounding properties) as the noise arising from the use 
of the site with the rugby players closer together on the pitches would not be 
materially different than if the players were slightly further apart on the 

Page 10



pitches. The neighbour comments made in the representation of 28th January 
2019 regarding the errors in the original committee report are noted. 
However, officers have re- visited the site and are satisfied that the relative 
positions of the as installed columns to the rear of nos. 4 and 5 Scotts View 
and at the south- eastern of the pitch are correct with regards to the positions 
of the original 8m high columns.       

9.12   The level of lighting provided by the columns is the necessary level for
training pitch purposes and the individual lights are pointed towards the pitch,
away from the neighbouring residential properties. The glare and impact upon
the Scotts View properties is not materially different than if the columns were
in their approved locations and is acceptable. Environmental Health Officers
have raised no concerns to the re- sited columns and the lights with regard to
impact upon the neighbouring residential properties. The introduction of the 
cowls will reduce the level of light spill arising from the lights, to the benefits 
of the occupiers of the neighbouring properties. 

9.13   The impact upon the Welwyn Garden City Conservation Area is also
acceptable as the re-sited columns and the cowls have preserved the 
character and appearance of the conservation area. The columns, lights and 
cowling have not had any materially different impact upon ecology or the 
natural environment and are not dazzling or distracting to drivers. The 
development is therefore considered to accord with Policy R20 of the District 
Plan, the NPPF and the SDG with regard to impact on the neighbouring 
properties.

9.14   Whether the permitted hours for the floodlights are or have been exceeded
with the corresponding impact upon the neighbouring properties is not known.
However, this may be investigated and the appropriate action taken 
accordingly.

The impact on the Urban Open Land

9.15 The Rugby Club is designated as an area of Urban Open Land within the 
residential area of Welwyn Garden City. Local Plan Policy OS1 states that 
land designated as Urban Open Land is vital to the form, character and 
quality of the built up areas of the district. Planning permission for 
development within these areas will not be granted unless it would:

i. Assist in the maintenance or reinforcement of their function as essential open 
areas;

ii. Be of a scale which does not compromise the value of the Urban Open Land 
or use of the open space as defined in terms of its criteria; and

iii. Not result in the loss or reduction in size of any playing pitches, if the open 
land is for formal recreation purposes, subject to the consideration set out in 
policy OS2.

9.16 The NPPF seeks to encourage multiple benefits from the use of land in urban 
areas and recognises that some open land can perform many functions (such 
as for wildlife and recreation). Furthermore, paragraph 96 of the NPPF 

Page 11



acknowledges that access to a network of high quality open spaces and 
opportunities for sport and physical activity is important for the health and 
well-being of communities. The development at the rugby club does not seek 
any alterations to the site itself, with all pitches being retained. The re- sited 
lighting columns are 15m high as approved and are directed towards the 
training pitch.

9.17 With regards to Policy OS1, it is considered that the development complies 
with parts i) & ii) as it assists in the maintenance and reinforcement of the 
site’s function, and is of a scale that does not compromise the value of the 
Urban Open Land or the use of the open space. The re- sited lighting 
columns and the cowls have not adversely impacted upon the land: they have 
maintained the open characteristic of this Urban Open Land. The 
development has also not impinged on the existing practice and playing 
pitches at this site and as such, the proposal has not resulted in the loss or a 
reduction in the size of the playing pitches. The development is therefore 
considered to be compliant with part iii) of Policy OS1.

3. Highway safety, car and cycle parking

9.18 The re- sited lighting columns have not had a materially different impact upon 
highway safety than if they were in their approved positions as they have no 
distracting or dazzling impacts for drivers on the surrounding residential 
roads. The cowls would have a shielding impact upon the lights, further 
limiting their impact upon safety.  

9.19   The re- sited columns have also had no impacts upon the car parking or cycle 
parking provision for the rugby club. The development was found to be 
acceptable in terms of parking provision at the time of the 2016 application 
and this remains the case with the re- sited columns.

4. Other considerations 
i) Ecology

9.20 Hertfordshire Ecology raised no objections to the development at the time of 
the 2016 application on the site and there have been no significant alterations 
to the development between that application and the current proposal.

9.21 The neighbour comments stating the columns should be reduced to 8m or 
10m in height and that the manufacturers of the columns have advised that 
this can be achieved and has been done at other clubs are noted. However, 
the agent for the application advises that the floodlights are required at the 
height as installed for health and safety reasons. The Rugby Football Union 
advises that the quality of lighting for rugby pitches is based upon Lux (how 
bright the lighting is) and Uniformity (how consistent the lighting is). For 
training pitches, the recommended figures are 100 lux and 0.5 uniformity. The 
lighting columns at the rugby club meet these requirements.

9.22 Moreover, the height of the columns is as approved under the application 
6/2016/0910/FULL.

Page 12



9.23 The Rugby England guidance ‘Floodlighting Installation and Management 
Guide’ does not specifically advise that lighting columns should be aligned 
with the 22 yard pitch lines. It advises that four, six or eight column systems 
at 13, 14, 16 or 18m in height may be used but does not state that the 
columns in a four light system should be aligned with the 22 yard pitch lines. 
Moreover, the location of the columns is not significantly different from their 
approved positions so the impact upon the levels of light across the pitch is 
not considered to be material. 

9.24 While it is realised that the level of light for training pitches need not be as 
high as for match pitches (according to the Rugby England guidance 
‘Floodlighting Installation and Management Guide’), the Council has to 
consider the application as submitted. However, the lights as installed are as 
those approved in 2016 (subject to their having been re- sited); the level of 
light has not altered. It is therefore not considered necessary to require the 
floodlights to be of a lower level of luminance. 

9.25 The development is not contained within Schedule 1 of the Town and Country 
Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 and does not 
fall within Schedule 2 of the Regulations. Whilst the proposal is considered an 
Urban Development Project, as listed at 10(b) of Schedule 2, the 
development would take place on a site less than 5 hectares, would not 
include more than 150 dwellings and would not include more than 1 hectare 
of urban development which is not dwellinghouse development. An EIA is 
therefore not required   

10 Conclusion and planning balance

10.1 The proposed development has been assessed against the policies of the 
Development Plan, the guidance contained in the Supplementary Design 
Guidance and the National Planning Policy Framework. It has been found to 
be acceptable, subject to conditions, in terms of impact on the character of 
the area, the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers, highways and 
parking and ecology.

11 Recommendation  

11.1 It is recommended that planning permission be approved subject to the 
following conditions:

1. The floodlights hereby approved shall only be used between the hours of 
19:00 and 21:00 on Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday evenings in the 
months of October to March and shall provide no form of illumination outside 
of those hours.

REASON: In order to protect residential amenity in accordance with policies 
D1 & D2 of the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan and the National Planning Policy 
Framework.

Page 13



2. The cowls shall be installed on the two lighting columns adjacent to the 
Scotts View properties within one month of the date of this permission and 
shall be permanently retained as installed.

REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the neighbouring properties.

3. The colour of the cowls shall match the colour of the existing lamp columns.

REASON:  In the interests of visual amenity.
   

4. The development/ works shall not be retained other than in accordance with 
the approved plans and details:
 
Plan
Number
HL250D15/
2/AL5760
I
II
2737

Revision
Number

B

Details

Updated Existing Elevation

Block Plan                                 
Location Plan
Detail of Special Overspill 
Cowl for rear of AL5700 
Floodlight

Received Date

4 April 2017

7 February 2017
7 February 2017
2 April 2019

REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with 
the approved plans and details.

5. POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE STATEMENT

The decision has been made taking into account, where practicable and 
appropriate the requirements of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework and material planning considerations do not justify a decision 
contrary to the development plan (see Officer’s report which can be viewed 
on the Council's website or inspected at these offices).

6. INFORMATIVE – OTHER LEGISLATION 

This permission does not convey any consent which may be required under 
any legislation other than the Town and Country Planning Acts. Any 
permission required under the Building Regulations or under any other Act, 
must be obtained from the relevant authority or body e.g. Fire Officer, Health 
and Safety Executive, Environment Agency (Water interest etc. Neither does 
this permission negate or override any private covenants which may affect 
the land.

Page 14



Tom Gabriel (Development Management)

Page 15



Date: 05/04/2019

Page 16



             Part I
Executive Member: Councillor S. Boulton

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE – 25 APRIL 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 

6/2018/3125/FULL

12 TOLMERS GARDENS, CUFFLEY, POTTERS BAR, EN6 4JE

ERECTION OF 8 APARTMENTS FOLLOWING DEMOLITION OF EXISTING 
BUNGALOW

APPLICANT: Mr A Sarno

(Northaw and Cuffley)

1 Site Description

1.1 The application site is located on the south side of Tolmers Gardens in the 
settlement of Cuffley.  The road is a residential cul-de-sac close to the centre of 
Cuffley containing detached and semi-detached houses in one and two storeys 
with consecutive numbering.  The ground level rises along the street and the 
roadway curves so there is not a continuous building line.

1.2 The site comprises a detached bungalow sited on the east of the plot.  The site 
incorporates the end of the rear garden of No 11 and a slice of the rear garden 
and front forecourt of No 13.  Both of these neighbouring properties are two 
storey.  No 13 has recently been converted into two self-contained flats 
(6/2017/2013/FULL).  Land levels on the site slope downward from west to east 
which result in the application dwelling being at a noticeably lower level than No 
13.  

2 The Proposal

2.1 Planning permission is sought for the erection of 8 apartments following 
demolition of the existing bungalow.  The flats would be in 1 block, designed to 
look like two semi-detached houses.  The flats would be arranged over three 
floors having three flats at ground level (2-beds), three at first floor (2-beds) and 
two in the roof-space (1no 2-bed and 1no 1-bed).  All the flats would be served 
by a lift.  The site would provide car parking spaces, a bin store, a cycle store and 
amenity areas. 

2.2 A total of 12 parking spaces would be provided on site, three on the frontage, 
and nine within the site.

2.3 This application follows a previously refused application for the ‘Erection of two 
semi-detached 4-bedroomed dwellings with associated car parking and 
landscaping, following the demolition of existing bungalow.’ (6/2017/0474/FULL).  
That application was refused for two reasons: scale, size, bulk and massing 
appearing overly prominent and incongruous in the street-scene (particularly the 
front gables) and over-dominance and perception of overlooking of No 13 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



Tolmers Gardens.  The application was dismissed on appeal and the Inspector 
commented that the width and height of the building would be out of scale in the 
street-scene and, combined with the wide flat-end gables at roof level, would be 
intrusive in the street-scene and have an adverse impact on the character and 
appearance of the area.  In addition the height and proximity to No 13 would 
result in an unacceptable effect on the living conditions at No 13. 

3 Reason for Committee Consideration

3.1 This application is presented to the Development Management Committee 
because it has been called in by Councillor Sarson on the following grounds:

“This would be overdevelopment in a rural area and totally out of character.”

4 Relevant Planning History

4.1 Application number: 6/2017/0474/FULL
Proposal: Erection of two semi-detached 4-bedroomed dwellings with associated 
car parking and landscaping, following the demolition of existing bungalow.
Decision: Refused
Decision date: 22 August 2017
Dismissed on Appeal 1 December 2017

4.2 Application number:  S6/1981/0708
Proposal: single storey side extension
Decision: Granted
Decision date: 26 January 1982

4.3 Application number: S6/1979/0741
Proposal: Ground floor rear extension and new dormer
Decision: Granted
Decision date:  20 December 1979

4.4 Application number: S6/1979/0410
Proposal: Two storey rear extension
Decision:  Granted
Decision date: 5 September 1979

4.5 Application number: E6/1958/1703
Proposal:  Site for bungalow
Decision: Granted
Decision date: 16 April 1958

5 Relevant Planning Policy

5.1 National Planning Policy Framework 2019 (NPPF) 

5.2 Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005 (District Plan)

5.3 Draft Local Plan Proposed Submission 2016 (Emerging Local Plan 2016)

5.4 Supplementary Design Guidance 2005 (SDG)

5.5  Supplementary Planning Guidance, Parking Standards 2004 (SPG)

Page 18



5.6 Interim Policy for Car Parking Standards and Garage Sizes 2014 (Interim Car 
Parking Policy)

6 Site Designation 

6.1 The site lies within the settlement of Cuffley as designated in the Welwyn Hatfield 
District Plan 2005.

7 Representations Received 

7.1 The application was advertised by means of neighbour notification letters and a 
site notice.  The site notice expired on 15th January 2019.  Sixty five responses 
were received from 61 addresses in the surrounding areas.  

7.2 Eleven supporting comments were from 5 addresses in Tolmers Gardens and 
three from the wider village area.  They can be summarised as follows:

 Site is within settlement boundary of Cuffley – not in the Green Belt
 There is a demand for this type of development
 Several long term residents looking to downsize for some years
 Accessibility to shops and local friends without being located on the main 

road (like the other flats)
 Good design, pleasing and in keeping with the area
 There should be a mix of housing in the area, including smaller units
 Housing market needs stimulation not stagnation
 Modern building, better insulated – lower carbon footprint
 Would accommodate downsizers; lift provided and  generous room sizes for 

less mobile people
 Adequate parking to meet Council standards
 Occupant of No 13  considered No 12 would  not overlook No 13
 No 14 side first floor window overlooks No 13
 No 13 is now occupied by a long term resident of Cuffley

7.3 Fifty seven objections were from 19 addresses in Tolmers Gardens and 32 from 
wider afield.  They can be summarised as follows:

 The proposal is overdevelopment of the site
 Density on the site would be high
 Bigger than scheme for two semi’s which was refused
 25% increase in number of properties in the road 
 Little amenity space
 Detrimental to character and appearance of area
 3 storeys and windows on second floor (roof) frontage are out of character
 Loss of garden, hedge, trees, and wildlife habitats
 Would set a precedent and alter character of village
 Detrimental to neighbours; demolition, block light, overshadow, overbearing 

impact on Nos 13 and 14.
 Windows at No 13 are built out and overlook No 14
 Where is the on-site bin collection point?
 Inadequate parking and turning on site
 Narrow curved road suffers from severe parking congestion
 Disruption from car headlights
 Eligibility for residents parking scheme?

Page 19



 Pedestrian gate from Parish Council car park is not an adequate access
 Not an appropriate site for flats
 Pressure on wider infrastructure: sewers and GP’s
 Proposal does not appear to be solely for elderly people as previously 

indicated
 There are other flatted developments for elderly people in Cuffley (300 

flats/maisonettes)
 No communal rooms for elderly people to socialise
 Contrary to draft Neighbourhood Plan which aims to preserve bungalows

7.4 Northaw and Cuffley Residents’ Association responded with a letter containing 
many of the points of objection set out above.  They also expressed that the 
response of residents at the NCRA meeting at which the proposal was 
presented, was not unanimously in favour of or against the proposal.

8 Parish Council Representations 

8.1 Northaw and Cuffley Parish Council responded with a major objection to the 
proposal on the following grounds:

“This Block would be out of character with Tolmers Gardens. Tolmers 
Gardens is not all 4 - 5 bedroomed houses as stated. There are some 3 
bedroomed homes. This is over development of the site. We recommend that 
WHBC make a site visit to make a judgement on the proposed mass scale & 
bulk of the development. A plan for two semi's has already been refused for 
this site - Ref 0474. Under the draft Neighbourhood Plan, NCPC 
recommends the retention of Bungalows. The site boundary shown in the 
proposed site plan 130E does not match the one in the design & access 
statement - Fig.2. page 5. Mature trees at No. 11 are at potential risk from 
this development.”

9 Consultations received 

9.1 Call-in received from Councillor Bernard Sarson stated in paragraph 3.1.

9.2 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Public Health & Protection Team – No 
objection 

9.3 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Client Services Team – Comments:

 The refuse/recycling requirements for this development would be either 1x1100ltr 
and 1x240ltr refuse bins/containers or 4x360ltr refuse bins/containers and 
3x360ltr recycling bins 

 Bin store will require will require double doors opening outwards with a tarmac 
path at a minimum of 2m wide from the doors to the freighter and a drag distance 
of no more than 15m 

 Strongly advise a lock to be fitted to the bin store and ask for a coded lock as 
opposed to one requiring fobs or keys. 

Page 20



9.4 Hertfordshire County Council Highways – Objection  

 Point of access to shared surface excessive in width, contrary to recommended 
standards (Roads in Herts 3rd Edition Version 1 Jan 2011 Table 4.1.1.1) and 
unacceptable in terms of pedestrian safety.

10 Analysis

10.1 The main planning issues to be considered in the determination of this 
application are:

1. Principle of Development
2. Quality of design and impact on the character and appearance of the 

area 
3. Impact on the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers and future 

occupiers 
4. Highways and parking provision 
5. Other considerations:

- Waste and recycling 
- Accessible and adaptable dwellings
- External lighting
- Neighbour representations 

 

1. Principle of Development 

10.2 Saved Policy R1 of the District Plan requires development to take place on 
previously used or developed land.  Development will only be permitted on 
‘greenfield’ land where it can be demonstrated that no suitable opportunities exist 
on previously used or developed land.

10.3 The National Planning Policy Framework 2019 (NPPF) encourages the provision 
of more housing and states that applications should be considered in the context 
of the presumption in favour of sustainable development.  Local Planning 
Authorities should encourage the effective use of land by reusing land that has 
been previously developed provided that it is not of high environmental value. 
Gardens and residential curtilages are not classed as previously developed land, 
having lower priority for development, but that does not mean they cannot be 
built on in any circumstances.  The settlement of Cuffley is defined as an urban 
area for the purposes of the District Plan.  Although gardens/residential curtilages 
are not a priority for development, the need to make efficient use of urban land 
remains a policy objective.

10.4 The application site is not allocated in the District Plan as a designated housing 
site so comes forward as a windfall site.  Policy H2 of the District Plan relates 
specifically to applications for windfall housing development and states that all 
proposals of this type will be assessed for potential suitability against the 
following criteria:

i. The availability of previously-developed sites and/or buildings;

ii. The location and accessibility of the site to services and facilities by 
transport modes other than the car; 

iii. The capacity of existing and potential infrastructure to absorb further 
development;

Page 21



iv. The ability to build new communities to support infrastructure and provide 
demand for services and facilities;

v. The physical and environmental constraints on development of land.

10.5 Policy SADM1 of the Emerging Local Plan is also relevant in regards to windfall 
housing development.  This policy is similar to Policy H2 of the District Plan but 
adds that the proposal should not undermine the delivery of allocated sites or the 
overall strategy of the Plan; and proposals would not result in disproportionate 
growth taking into account the position of a settlement within the settlement 
hierarchy.

10.6 The site is situated within the settlement of Cuffley, within easy walking distance 
of services and facilities of the centre.  Existing infrastructure can absorb this 
development and the proposal would not undermine the delivery of allocated 
sites in the overall strategy, nor result in disproportionate growth of the 
settlement.  The physical and environmental constraints of development of the 
land in the manner proposed is assessed below.

2. Quality of design and impact on the character and appearance of the 
area

10.7    District Plan Policies D1 and D2 of the Local Plan require the standard of design 
in all new development to be of a high quality and that all new development 
respects and relates to the character and context of the area in which it is 
proposed.  These policies are expanded upon in the Council’s SDG and are 
consistent with Policy SP9 of the Emerging Local Plan.  Furthermore, Policy 
GBSP2 of the District Plan requires that ‘within specified settlements’ 
development will be limited to that which is compatible with the maintenance and 
enhancement of their character.  

10.8 The NPPF places a clear emphasis on high quality design and states in 
paragraph 130 that planning permission should be refused for development of 
poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the 
character and quality of an area and the way in functions, taking into account any 
local design standards or style guides in plans or supplementary planning 
documents.  As such, there is also consistency between the Council’s Saved and 
Emerging Local Plan with the NPPF.

10.9   The site is located near to the centre of the settlement and forms part of an area 
which has a residential, suburban character of broadly two-storey detached 
dwellings set with good sized plots.  There is a strong presence of soft 
landscaping in the area which effectively softens the built development.  A 
number of generously sized plots on Tolmers Gardens, each containing a single 
dwelling, have gained planning permission to be redeveloped for additional 
residential development over the years.  Examples include: 

 13 The Gardens (6/2017/2013/FULL) – Conversion of 5-bed detached house 
into 2no, 2-bed flats 

 Land at 16 Tolmers Gardens (S6/2006/1076/OP & S6/2006/1728/DE) – 
Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of four new dwellings.  Now 
named Chase Green 

Page 22



 Land to rear of 1-3 Tolmers Gardens (S6/2003/1317/FP) Erection of 3no, 2-
bed dwellings.  Not implemented.   

10.10 The proposed development comprises a flatted block with associated cycle and 
bins stores, amenity space and parking.  

10.11 The proposal would be 64.7% larger in footprint than the existing dwelling.  Whilst 
this may appear to be significant, the application site is larger than existing – the 
result being a development which would only occupy 23% of the application site 
(302sqm of 1274sqm).  Therefore, it is considered that the built development to 
plot ratio as proposed is acceptable.

10.12 The building would have a crown roof, hipped on all sides.  This is an efficient 
design which allows the incorporation of living space into the roof.  Whilst in 
some instances crown roofs can result in an unduly bulky appearance, in this 
case the visual perception of bulk would be reduced by the staggered elevations 
of the proposed development together with the bay and oriel window projections.  
When travelling east to west along Tolmers Gardens, views of the roof would be 
largely obscured by Nos 8, 9, 10 and 11 Tolmers Gardens. 

10.13 Notwithstanding the above, the success of the proposed crown roof will rely on 
the quality of the detailed design, therefore it is considered necessary and 
reasonable to attach a planning condition requiring a cross-section drawing to be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Provided 
that the flat roof is stepped down and concealed behind the surrounding pitched 
roof, its impact in terms of visual amenity would be limited.

10.14 The development would have the appearance of 2no semi-detached dwellings 
from the street scene and include front bay windows reflective to the front façade 
of many existing dwellings in Tolmers Gardens.  The design would also include 
modest hipped roof projections above the bay window features, an oriel window 
to the western flank and a further brick faced bay projection to the east flank.  
These additional features add visual interest to the building and are considered 
complementary to the area’s character.  

10.15 In terms of appearance, external materials have not been specified on the 
submitted drawings however it is understood that theses would be in keeping 
with the street-scene.  The front page of the submitted Design & Access 
Statement (August 2018) provides a computer generated 3-D visualisation of the 
external appearance of the dwelling and how it would integrate into the street-
scene.  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning, precise 
details/samples of the external materials can be secured through a planning 
condition.

10.16 On entering Tolmers Gardens, land levels slope gradually upward from east to 
west and building heights are stepped accordingly to respect this topography.  
The proposed flatted block would be set below existing ground level by between 
0.4m-1.4m to offset its three storey height.  The result of which is a building 
which would not be excessively greater in height than No 11 Tolmers Gardens 
(on lower land level) and notably lower than No 13 Tolmers Gardens (on higher 
land level).

Page 23



10.17 In terms of layout, access to the ground floor flats would be by doors leading 
directly to the footpaths around the building.  Access to the first and second 
floors would be via the communal stair and lift well positioned on the west side of 
the building.

10.18 The application has been supported by a block plan showing retained and 
proposed planting.  A large boundary hedge has been removed between No 12 
and 13’s gardens.  This was set behind the 2m fence on the site frontage and not 
a major contribution to the street-scene.  Details of any tree works required to 
facilitate the development, a tree protection plan, and a further landscaping plan 
requiring additional trees and hedging to bolster the most prominent boundaries 
can be secured by condition.  

10.19 Details of hard-landscaping have not been provided, however precise details can 
be secured through a planning condition.

10.20 Whilst it is noted that planning permission has been refused by Officers and 
subsequently dismissed at appeal for a flatted development on the site under 
reference: 6/2017/0474/FULL, the design of the development in that case was 
materially different to that currently proposed.  The footprint has been reduced; 
the building has been re-aligned on the plot; and flat-end gables deemed 
inappropriate have been removed.  Cumulatively, the proposed building would be 
much less prominent in the street-scene.  In addition, the detailing of the building 
in terms of size and design of fenestrations have been extensively re-worked to 
respect and relate to adjacent dwellings in the street.

10.21 Concluding on the above and subject to the suggested conditions, it is 
considered that the proposed development would represent an acceptable 
standard of design and which would maintain the character of the existing area.  
In this respect the development would accord with Policies D1 and D2 of the 
District Plan, the Council’s SDG, Policy SP9 of the Emerging Local Plan and the 
NPPF.

3. Living conditions of future occupiers and neighbouring residents 

10.22 Policy D1 of the District Plan requires the standard of design in all new    
development to be of a high quality.  This is expanded upon in the Council’s SDG 
which sets out the guidelines with regard to residential development for the 
provision of adequate amenity for future occupants and the protection of 
neighbouring residential amenity.  The NPPF advocates high quality design and 
outlines that planning decisions should create a high standard of amenity for 
existing and future occupiers

Living conditions of future occupiers 

10.23 The proposed 1 and 2-bed flats are of a good size internally for the occupiers.  
The table on the following page sets out the Gross Internal Area (GIA) of the 
proposed flats with the Nationally Described Space Standards (NDSS).  The floor 
areas proposed at ground and first floor are significantly over the NDSS for the 
number of bedrooms.  The applicant has stated that the rooms are generous to 
accommodate people with mobility restrictions including wheelchair users who 
often require more circulation and manoeuvring space.

Page 24



Flat No No of 
bedrooms

GIA sqm 
proposed

NDSS sqm 
requirement 

NDSS 
achieved

1 2 91 70 3 bedroom

2 2 71 70 2 bedroom

3 2 90 70 3 bedroom 
(5 
persons)

4 2 77 70 3 bedroom
(4 
persons)

5 2 71 70 2 bedroom
6 2+ study 96 70 3 bedroom 

(5 
persons)

7 1 61 39 2 bedroom 
(3 person)

8 2 82 61 3 bedroom 
(4 
persons)

   

10.24 Communal amenity space would be provided around the blocks of an acceptable 
size with access to this area being available for the benefit of all occupiers.  In 
addition, patios for side and rear ground floor flats are proposed.  A planning 
condition can be imposed to ensure access to the communal space is retained 
for all occupants of the building.   A detailed landscaping scheme including 
boundary treatments, and details of any garden furniture will ensure that the 
amenity area is appropriately designed for users.  This can also be secured by 
condition.

10.25 Future occupiers in this block would have sufficient levels of outlook, privacy, 
sunlight and daylight to their internal accommodation.

Living conditions of neighbouring residents 

10.26 In terms of the living conditions of neighbouring residents, the main properties 
which may be affected by the development proposal are those at No 11, 13 and 
14 Tolmers Gardens.  

10.27 No 11 is a two storey detached dwelling sited to the immediate east of the 
application site.  The flank elevation of the building would be separated from the 
flank elevation of No 11 by approximately 2m and run approximately parallel to it.  
The flank wall is blank and the 3no roof-lights in the side roof-slope would not 
present direct overlooking to this property provided they are non-opening and 
glazed in obscure glass below 1.7m from finished internal floor level.  This 
measure can be secured through a planning condition.  The proposed building 
would project 5.5m to the rear of No 11.  This level of projection would not appear 
unduly dominant from the rear windows or private amenity space of No 11 
considering the separation distance between the properties, overall height of the 
proposed building and its hipped roof form.  The rear elevation of No 11 faces 
south and so would not experience a significant adverse loss of sunlight or 
daylight from the proposed building.

Page 25



10.28 No 13 is also a two storey building, which has been subdivided into two flats (one 
on each floor).  It is on higher ground than the application site.  The flank 
elevation of the building would be separated from the side boundary fence of No 
13 by approximately 7m, the flank elevation of No 13 by 8m.  The proposed oriel 
window at first floor is approximately 6m from this boundary and would only 
feature side windows so there would be no direct or harmful overlooking.  There 
would be no direct views toward neighbouring properties from rear windows of 
the proposed flatted block.  Flat 5 (at first floor) would feature a step-out balcony 
to the rear – approximately 1.2m in depth.  To prevent direct overlooking toward 
neighbouring properties, the flanks of this balcony include a 1.8 solid screen.  
Such a measure would prevent harm to neighbouring properties in terms of 
overlooking or privacy.  Precise details of this 1.8 screen can be secured through 
a planning condition. 

10.29 The 4no roof-lights in the side roof-slope would not present direct overlooking to 
this property provided they are non-opening and glazed in obscure glass below 
1.7m from finished internal floor level.  This measure can be secured through a 
planning condition.  The building would project beyond the rear of No 13 but be 
stepped back.  The rear window of the first floor of No 13 has been angled away 
from No 12.  The lawfulness of this adaptation is under investigation.  If the 
window was still flush with the rear elevation the proposed new building would 
not intrude upon a 45 degree line from the centre of that window until a distance 
of 15m, and this would be reduced in impact by the pitch of the roof over the lift 
and would not appear unduly dominant.  The rear elevation of No 13 faces south 
and, given the difference in land levels, would not experience an adverse loss of 
sunlight or daylight from the proposed building.

10.30 Concluding on the above and subject to the suggested planning conditions, it is 
considered that the proposed development would provide acceptable living 
conditions for its future occupiers and protect the living conditions of all 
neighbouring properties.  In this respect, the development proposal would accord 
with Policy D1 of the District Plan, the Council’s SDG, Policy SADM11 of the 
Emerging Local Plan and the NPPF.

4. Highways and parking provision

10.31 The Highways Authority have been consulted for this application and highlight 
that the proposed shared surface access at the point of entry (annotated as 
tarmac on drawing number: jw820-130 Rev G) is excessive in width and 
therefore unacceptable in terms of pedestrian safety.  At the nearest point to the 
highway, this shared surface is 7m in width.  The Highways Authority recommend 
that such an access in this location is 5m at the back edge of the footway as the 
development could reasonably be served by a dropped kerb.  Notwithstanding 
the submitted details, a planning condition can require this access to be reduced 
in width accordingly prior to occupation of any part of the development.

10.32 The development would provide a total of 12 on-site parking spaces in full 
accordance with the Council’s parking standards.  The spaces are of suitable 
dimensions and appropriately laid out for safe and convenient use.  In addition, 
many of the parking spaces would be located to the rear of the site and therefore 
would not be readily visible from the street scene.

Page 26



10.33 Notwithstanding the above, it is considered necessary and reasonable in this 
case for the Local Planning Authority to exercise control over the allocation of car 
parking in order to ensure that on-site parking spaces are designated and spread 
appropriately across the flats.  Control over the allocation of car parking can be 
secured through an appropriately worded planning condition.

10.34 The site is located within walking distance of the village centre of Cuffley where 
amenities and facilities are located, as well as Cuffley railway station and access 
to bus services. 

10.35 A cycle store (for up to 8 cycles) has also been indicated which supports 
sustainable modes of transport.  Whilst full details of the building have not been 
provided, this can be secured through a planning condition.

10.36 A suitable level of parking would be provided on site and the proposal would not 
represent a severe impact to highway capacity to justify a refusal of the 
application. Therefore subject to conditions the development would accord with 
Policy M14 of the Local Plan, the Council’s SPG and Interim Parking Policy, 
Policy SADM12 of the Emerging Local Plan and the NPPF.

5. Other considerations 

Waste and recycling 

10.37 The Council’s Client Services Team (Client Services) have been consulted for 
this application.

10.38 The refuse/recycling requirements for this development would be either: 1no 
1100 litre and 1no 240 litre refuse bins/containers or; 4no 360 litre refuse 
bins/containers and 4no 360 litre blue lidded recycling bins.

10.39 The location of bin store is acceptable in terms of its proximity to the highway for 
waste collection.  However, no details have been provided regarding the size, 
form, appearance and openings of the bin store, nor the number of receptacles 
the bin store can accommodate.  Such details can be secured through a planning 
condition.

10.40 A 2m wide tarmac path from the door to the freighter is required.  The area 
between the proposed bin store and the shared tarmac surface is laid in grass.  
However, a planning condition can require such a path to be provided to provide 
completely acceptable access arrangements for the dragging of bins to and from 
the bin store and freighter.

10.41 Client services have also requested that a lock to be fitted to the bin store and 
ask for a coded lock as opposed to one requiring fobs or keys.  It is however 
considered that such a request cannot be imposed under the planning system.  
This would be for future occupiers and the owner/management company to 
agree with the waste management authority.

Accessible and adaptable dwellings 

10.42 Policy H10 of the District Plan states that in all residential developments involving 
5 or more dwellings, the Council will seek to secure a proportion of dwellings to 
be built to Lifetime Home Standards. Policy SP7 of the Emerging Local Plan 
updates Policy H10 outlines that at least 20% of all new dwellings on sites 

Page 27



involving 5 or more new dwellings will be required to meet Building Regulations 
Part M4(2) standards for ‘accessible and adaptable’ dwellings.

10.43 The Council are applying substantial weight to this part of Policy SP7 in decision 
making given the current evidence base and support of such technical standards 
in Planning Practice Guidance.

10.44 It is understood that the development would meet the needs of occupants with 
differing needs including some older or disabled people and is capable of 
adaptation, should needs change in the future. A planning condition can ensure 
that the development adheres to this part of the Building Regulations.

External lighting

10.45 No details of external lighting have been provided alongside this application.  A 
planning condition is suggested requiring details to be submitted and approved 
by the Local Authority in the interest of protecting the living conditions of 
neighbouring occupiers and for the avoidance of any doubt.

Neighbour representations 

10.46 A large number of neighbour representations have been received for this 
application, either supporting of objecting to the proposal.  Many of the objections 
listed in paragraph 7.3 of this report have already been considered.  

10.47 A recurring theme in the objections received is that the site is not appropriate for 
flats, would represent overdevelopment of the site and set a precedent.  

10.48 There is a similarly scaled flatted block nearby the site along Tolmers Road and 
flatted development also exists above shops along the adjacent village centre 
along Station Road.  The Council do not have a policy directing flatted 
development to gateway locations.  Furthermore, Policy GBSP2 aims to ensure 
development within specified settlements, of which Cuffley is one, is compatible 
with the maintenance and enhancement of their character.  It is considered that 
the flats proposed in this instance including amenity areas would be appropriately 
sized and well-appointed, and located within a building which would be 
compatible with the street scene.

10.49 Concern regarding the development setting a precedent with harm to local 
character are appreciated.  However, no similar sites or applications to which this 
might apply have been put forward.  Furthermore, each application and appeal is 
considered on its own merits and so a generalised fear of precedent can only be 
given limited weight.

10.50 In addition, the proposed development complies with Paragraph 60 of the NPPF 
which states that housing development should respond to future demographic 
needs and market trends.

11 Overall balance and conclusion

11.1 Paragraph 73 of the NPPF sets out that “Local planning authorities should 
identify and update annually a supply of specific deliverable sites sufficient to 
provide a minimum of five years’ worth of housing against their housing 
requirement set out in adopted strategic policies, or against their local housing 
need where the strategic policies are more than five years old”.

Page 28



11.2 Paragraph 11 of the NPPF outlines that decisions should apply a presumption in 
favour of sustainable development and footnote 7 outlines that it includes, 
amongst other things, “for applications involving the provision of housing, 
situations where the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a five year 
supply of deliverable housing sites (with the appropriate buffer, as set out in 
paragraph 73)”.

11.3 The recent appeal at Entech House outlined that the Council do not have a five 
year housing supply and therefore the NPPF at Paragraph 11 notes the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development which for decision taking 
means:

c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date 
development plan without delay; or 

d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies 
which are most important for determining the application are out of date, 
granting permission unless: 

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets 
of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the 
development proposed; or

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significant and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the polices in this 
Framework taken as a whole.

11.4 An assessment of the benefits:

The proposed development for 8 flats will make a small but important contribution 
to help the Borough meet the requirements of Draft Policy SP2, which identifies a 
borough-wide housing target of 12,000 dwellings between 2013 and 2032.  The 
principle of development of this site is in accordance with the emerging site 
allocation policy. 

11.5 The site is sustainably located within the settlement of Cuffley, in close walking 
distance to range of day-to-day service needs.

11.6 The proposed development has been assessed against the policies of the District 
Plan, Emerging Local Plan and NPPF.  It has been found to be acceptable, 
subject to conditions, in terms of impact on: the character of the area, living 
conditions of future occupiers and neighbouring occupiers, highways and 
parking, environmental health and the wider environment.  There are no adverse 
impacts to this development and it meets the economic, social and environmental 
objective of sustainable development in mutually supportive ways.

11.7 Subject to the imposition of relevant conditions, the proposal is considered 
acceptable in terms of the above and is not contrary to the aims and objectives of 
saved policies of the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005, the Draft Local Plan 
Proposed Submission August 2016; and the National Planning Policy Framework 
2019.

Page 29



12 Recommendation 

It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to the following 
conditions:

1. No development above ground level shall take place until samples of the 
materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the building 
hereby granted have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The development shall be implemented using the approved 
materials and subsequently, the approved materials shall not be changed.

REASON:  To ensure a satisfactory standard of development in the interests of 
visual amenity in accordance with Policies D1 and D2 of the Welwyn Hatfield 
District Plan 2005; Supplementary Design Guidance 2005 (Statement of Council 
Policy); Policy SP9 of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Draft Local Plan 
Proposed Submission August 2016; and the National Planning Policy Framework 
2019.

2. No development above ground level shall take place until details of the proposed 
crown roof have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The details, including; a roof plan, elevations and sections, in either 
1:50 or 1:100 scale, must clearly show that the flat roof is stepped down and 
concealed behind the surrounding pitched roof. The pitched roof must use ridge 
tiles. Subsequently the development must not be carried out other than in 
accordance with the approved details.

REASON: The proposal contains insufficient information in regards to the 
detailed design of the roof and this is required in the interests of quality of design 
and visual amenity in accordance with Policies GBSP2, D1 and D2 of the 
Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005; Supplementary Design Guidance 2005 
(Statement of Council Policy); Policy SP9 of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council Draft Local Plan Proposed Submission August 2016 and; the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2019.

3. No development above ground level shall take place until a scheme setting out 
the arrangements for the delivery of accessible housing will be supplied to the 
council in accordance with the following requirements:

A schedule of units, together with appropriate plans and drawings, must be 
submitted to and be approved by the local planning authority setting out details of 
the number, layout and location of all units that will comply with Part M4(2) of the 
Building Regulations 2010. At least 20% of all new dwellings must meet Building 
Regulations Part M4(2) standards for ‘accessible and adaptable dwellings’;

a) All units specified as M4(2) in the agreed schedule and plans must be 
implemented in accordance with that approval and in compliance with the 
corresponding part of the Building Regulations in that regard;

b) The person carrying out the building work must inform the Building Control 
body which requirements apply;

c) Written verification of the completion of all dwellings in accord with part (a) 
above will be supplied to the local planning authority within 30 days of the 
practical completion [of the block it forms part of].

Page 30



REASON: To ensure that suitable housing is provided for households in need of 
accessible or wheelchair housing in accordance with Policies D1, and H10 of the 
Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005; and Policy SP7 of the Welwyn Hatfield 
Borough Council Draft Local Plan Proposed Submission August 2016 and the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2019.

4. No development above ground level shall take place until details, including type 
and appearance, of the proposed flank screens of the balcony associated with 
Flat 5 has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The approved details must be in place prior to occupation of Flat 5 
and retained permanently thereafter.

REASON: To protect the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers in 
accordance with Policy D1 of the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005, 
Supplementary Design Guidance 2005 (Statement of Council Policy), Policy 
SADM11 of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Draft Local Plan Proposed 
Submission August 2016, and the National Planning Policy Framework 2019.

5. No development above ground level shall take place until full details on a suitably 
scaled plan of both hard and soft landscape works have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development must not 
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

The landscaping details to be submitted must include:

a) Means of enclosure and boundary treatments (including locations, height, 
scale and appearance);

b) Hard surfacing, other hard landscape features and materials;

c) Existing trees, hedges or other soft features to be retained and a method 
statement showing tree protection measures to be implemented for the 
duration of the construction;

d) Planting plans, including specifications of species, sizes, planting centres, 
number and percentage mix, and details of seeding or turfing.

REASON: The landscaping of this site is required in order to protect and 
enhance the existing visual character of the area and to reduce the visual and 
environmental impacts of the development hereby permitted in accordance with 
Policies GBSP2, D2 and D8 of the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005; Policy 
SP9 and SADM16 of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Draft Local Plan 
Proposed Submission August 2016, and the National Planning Policy Framework 
2019.

6. All agreed landscaping comprised in the above details of landscaping must be 
carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of 
the first building, the completion of the development, or in agreed phases 
whichever is the sooner: and any plants which within a period of 5 years from the 
completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged 
or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar 
size and species. All landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
guidance contained in British Standards 8545: 2014.

REASON: To ensure proper implementation of the agreed landscape details in 
the interest of the amenity value of the development in accordance with Policies 

Page 31



GBSP2, D2 and D8 of the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005; Policy SP9 and 
SADM16 of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Draft Local Plan Proposed 
Submission August 2016, and the National Planning Policy Framework 2019.

7. No development above ground level shall take place until details of the proposed 
cycle store have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  Details must include:

a) Elevations (front, sides and rear) to a metric scale illustrating the size, form 
and openings. The type, colour and manufacture of the external materials 
must also be annotated;

b) Floor plan to a metric scale showing footprint and openings;

c) Roof plan to a metric scale including annotation of type, colour and 
manufacture of the roof covering.

The cycle store must be constructed in accordance with the approved details, 
made available for use and retained in that form permanently thereafter.

REASON: In order to ensure that there is adequate provision for cycle 
accommodation within the application site, encouraging alternative modes of 
transport in accordance Policy M6 of the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005; 
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Parking Standards 2004 (Statement of 
Council Policy); Policy SADM12 of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Draft 
Local Plan Proposed Submission August 2016; and the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2019.

8. No development above ground level shall take place until details of the proposed 
bin store and access arrangement has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.  Details must include:

a) Elevations (front, sides and rear) to a metric scale illustrating the size, form 
and openings of the bin store.  The type, colour and manufacture of the 
external materials must also be annotated;

b) Floor plan to a metric scale showing footprint of the bin store, openings and 
receptacle provision within.  The receptacle provision must include either: 
1no 1100 litre and 1no 240 litre refuse bins/containers or; 4no 360 litre refuse 
bins/containers and 4no 360 litre blue lidded recycling bins.  The bin store 
will require double doors opening outwards;

c) Roof plan to a metric scale including annotation of type, colour and 
manufacture of the roof covering;

d) A revised site plan to drawing number: jw820-130 Rev G, showing a tarmac 
path at a minimum width of 2 metres between the bin store doors and tarmac 
shared surface.

The bin store and access path must be constructed in accordance with the 
approved details, made available for use and retained in that form permanently 
thereafter.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory standard of refuse and recycling provision 
and to protect the residential amenity of adjoining and future occupiers in 
accordance with Policies R5 and D1 of the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005; 

Page 32



Policy SADM12 of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Draft Local Plan 
Proposed Submission August 2018; and the National Planning Policy Framework 
2019.

9. No development above ground level shall take place until details have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority showing the 
shared surface access (at the point of entry from the highway) on drawing 
number: jw820-130 Rev G revised to a width of 5 metres.

The approved details must be carried out prior to occupation of any part of the 
development.

REASON: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Policy SADM2 of 
the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Draft Local Plan Proposed Submission 
August 2016 and the National Planning Policy Framework 2019.

10. Prior to installation of any external lighting, the applicant must submit to, for 
approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority, details relating to the external 
lighting scheme (including vertical lux diagrams which show potential light 
trespass into windows of nearby residential properties). This scheme must meet 
the requirements within the Institution of Lighting Professionals guidance notes 
for the reduction of obtrusive lighting.

Any external lighting must be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details.

REASON: To protect the living conditions of neighbouring residential properties 
in accordance with Policy D1 and R20 of the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005, 
Supplementary Design Guidance 2005 (Statement of Council Policy), Policy 
SADM11 and SADM18 of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Draft Local Plan 
Proposed Submission August 2016, and the National Planning Policy Framework 
2019.

11. Prior to occupation of any part of the development hereby approved, the  
proposed on-site vehicle parking must be laid out, demarcated, levelled, surfaced 
and drained, and retained thereafter available for that specific use.

REASON: To ensure the parking areas are implemented and retained for their 
specific use in the interests of highway safety and parking provision, in 
accordance with Policy M14 of the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005; 
Supplementary Planning Guidance – Parking Standards 2004; Interim Policy for 
Car Parking Standards and Garage Sizes 2014; Policies SADM2 and SADM12 of 
the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Draft Local Plan Proposed Submission 
August 2016, and the National Planning Policy Framework 2019.

12. Prior to occupation of any part of the development hereby approved, a scheme 
which shows the spaces allocated to each flat must be submitted to and agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This must include a minimum of one 
space per unit.  The car parking layout as shown on drawing numbers: jw820-130 
Rev G and jw820-133, and agreed parking allocation must be retained 
permanently and shall not be used for any other purpose.  

REASON: To ensure that the car parking spaces are provided prior to the 
occupation of the units in the interests of highway safety and that the number of 
spaces to serve each flat complies with Policy M14 of the Welwyn Hatfield 
District Plan 2005, Supplementary Planning Guidance - Parking Standards 2004, 

Page 33



Interim Policy for Car Parking Standards and Garage Sizes 2014; Policies SP4, 
SADM2 and SADM12 of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Draft Local Plan 
Proposed Submission August 2016; and the National Planning Policy Framework 
2019.

13. Prior to occupation of any part of the development hereby approved, the shared 
amenity space must be provided.  Thereafter, the shared amenity space must be 
retained permanently for the occupiers of the development hereby approved and 
must not be used for any other purpose.

REASON: To ensure all future occupiers of the development benefit from 
satisfactory private amenity space in accordance with Policy D1 of the Welwyn 
Hatfield District Plan 2005, Supplementary Design Guidance 2005 (Statement of 
Council Policy), Policy SADM11 of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Draft 
Local Plan Proposed Submission August 2016, and the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2019.

14. Any upper floor window located in a wall or roof slope forming a side elevation of 
the building hereby approved must be obscure-glazed and non-opening unless 
the parts of the window which can be opened are more than 1.7 metres above 
the floor of the room in which the window is installed, and shall be retained in that 
form thereafter.

REASON:  To protect the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers in 
accordance with Policy D1 of the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005, 
Supplementary Design Guidance 2005 (Statement of Council Policy), Policy 
SADM11 of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Draft Local Plan Proposed 
Submission August 2016, and the National Planning Policy Framework 2019.

15.

Plan
Number
jw820-136

jw820-135

jw820-130
jw820-131

jw820-132

jw820-134

Revision
Number
G

G

G
G

G

G

Details

Existing Site Location Plan 
& Block Plan                            
Existing Floor Plans and 
Elevations 
Proposed Site Plan 
Proposed Floor Plans and 
Roof Plan  
Proposed Elevations & 
Section
Proposed Front & Rear 
Street Elevation 

Received Date

25 March 2019

25 March 2019

25 March 2019
25 March 2019

25 March 2019

25 March 2019

Page 34



Informatives

1. This permission does not convey any consent which may be required under any 
legislation other than the Town and Country Planning Acts. Any permission 
required under the Building Regulations or under any other Act, must be obtained 
from the relevant authority or body e.g. Fire Officer, Health and Safety Executive, 
Environment Agency (Water interest etc. Neither does this permission negate or 
override any private covenants which may affect the land.

2. The development will involve the numbering of properties and/or the naming of 
new streets. The applicant MUST contact Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, 
Environmental Services (01707 357 000) before any name or number is 
proposed. This is a requirement of the Public Health Act 1875 and Public Health 
(Amendment) Act 1907.

POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE STATEMENT

The decision has been made taking into account, where practicable and 
appropriate the requirements of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework and material planning considerations do not justify a decision 
contrary to the development plan (see Officer’s report which can be viewed on 
the Council's website or inspected at these offices).

David Elmore (Development Management)
Date of expiry: 04 February 2019
Extension of time: 26 April 2019

Page 35



Page 36



Part I
Executive Member: Councillor S. Boulton

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE – 25 APRIL 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND 
GOVERNANCE)

Appeal Decisions 13/03/2019 to 10/04/2019

6/2018/1808/HOUSE

DCLG No: APP/C1950/D/18/3217775
Appeal By: Mr A Marler

Site: 5 Oakwell Drive, Northaw, Potters Bar, EN6 4EZ
Proposal: Erection of pool house following demolition of existing outbuilding

Decision: Appeal Allowed with Conditions

Decision Date: 15/03/2019
Delegated or DMC 
Decision:

Delegated

Summary: The key issues were whether the proposal would be inappropriate development in 
the Green Belt and the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of 
the area, particularly protected trees. The Inspector considered that the cumulative 
effect of the proposals would remain proportionate to the original dwelling and that 
the existing and proposed extensions would be relatively modest and subservient 
in scale and mass. It was considered that the underground section of the scheme 
would be largely concealed under its predominantly green roof. With regard to the 
effect on the character and appearance of the area the Inspector considered, 
having regard to the evidence available, that the extensions were unlikely to have 
an adverse impact on the nearby protected trees and that the proposal would not 
conflict with Local Plan policies related to sustainable development and good 
design. The appeal was allowed subject to conditions.

6/2018/2125/HOUSE

DCLG No: APP/C1950/D/18/3215429
Appeal By: Mr & Mrs C & K Dale

Site: 13 New Park Road, Newgate Street, Hertford, SG13 8RD
Proposal: Erection of first floor front and two storey rear extensions including alterations to 

openings to facilitate roof alterations
Decision: Appeal Dismissed

Decision Date: 25/03/2019
Delegated or DMC 
Decision:

Delegated

Summary: The main issues in the appeal were whether the proposal would be inappropriate 
development in the Green Belt, effects on openness and the effect on the 

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



character and appearance of the area. The Inspector noted that the original 
dwelling on site was a bungalow and that this had already been extended in the 
1990s by a loft conversion and roof extensions, increasing the floor area by 51%. 
The current proposal for first floor front and two storey rear extensions would result 
in 113% increase in floor area. The Inspector considered that the test of 
inappropriate is both that of floorspace and size and, whilst the Inspector had not 
been provided with any calculations of volume, they considered that the 
calculations on floor area do point to a scheme which would clearly result in 
substantial additions to the original building. The proposed increase in the size of 
the building, when considered cumulatively to the existing extensions was 
considered significant and to transform the building’s scale therefore representing 
inappropriate development in the Green Belt. As a result harm to openness of the 
Green Belt was also identified. With regard to the character and appearance of the 
area the Inspector found that the proposal would represent a poor standard of 
design in conflict with design quality and character policies in the District Plan. The 
appeal was dismissed.

6/2018/2080/PN11

DCLG No: APP/C1950/W/18/3215189
Appeal By:

Site: Norton Building Bridge Road East Welwyn Garden City
Proposal: Prior approval for change of use of the first, second and third floors from office 

(B1(a)) to residential (C3)
Decision: Appeal Withdrawn

Decision Date: 01/04/2019
Delegated or DMC 
Decision:

Delegated

Summary: The appeal was withdrawn

6/2018/0650/FULL

DCLG No: APP/C1950/W/18/3215410
Appeal By: Mr B Gray

Site: 22 The Avenue Welwyn AL6 0PP
Proposal: Permission for the erection of 4 detached dwellings, retention of existing dwelling 

(no.22) with associated parking and provision of internal access road and turning 
area

Decision: Appeal Dismissed

Decision Date: 02/04/2019
Delegated or DMC 
Decision:

Delegated

Summary: This appeal was considered in conjunction with a further appeal for up to 12 
dwellings, detailed below.

The main issues were whether or not the proposal was inappropriate development 
in the Green Belt, effects on Green Belt openness, design of the proposed 

Page 38



dwellings, whether affordable housing should be required for the outline application 
of up to 12 dwellings and if the development was inappropriate, whether the 
identified harm was clearly outweighed by other factors so as to amount to very 
special circumstances.
 
The inspector agreed with the Council that only a small part of the site could be 
considered as being previously developed land with the result that he considered 
that both applications for housing could not be found to meet any of the exceptions 
listed within paragraph 145 or 146 of the NPPF. It was found that the Council’s 
argument that the applicant should provide affordable housing for the outline 
application was correct, although he did not state whether this should be based 
solely on the requirements set out within paragraph 64 of the NPPF or on the 
requirement set out within Policy SP7. The inspector agreed that both proposal 
would amount to poor design because they would not respect the character of the 
area and the new dwellings would appear cramped within the site when compared 
to the immediate area. In conclusion, it was found that the appellant’s arguments 
to support the proposed developments were insufficient to overcome the harm to 
the Green Belt. It should be noted that although the inspector attached significant 
weighted to the Council’s current inability to demonstrate a five year supply of 
deliverable housing land this was insufficient to overcome the Green Belt harm.  

6/2017/1751/OUTLINE

DCLG No: APP/C1950/W/18/3202272
Appeal By: Mr B Gray

Site: Land at and inc 22 The Avenue Welwyn AL6 0PP
Proposal: Outline planning permission for erection of up to 12 dwellings with all matters 

except access reserved, to include demolition of existing dwelling and industrial 
building.

Decision: Appeal Dismissed

Decision Date: 02/04/2019
Delegated or DMC 
Decision:

Committee

Summary: The main issues were whether or not the proposal was inappropriate development 
in the Green Belt, effects on Green Belt openness, design of the proposed 
dwellings, whether affordable housing should be required for the outline application 
of up to 12 dwellings and if the development was inappropriate, whether the 
identified harm was clearly outweighed by other factors so as to amount to very 
special circumstances.
 
The inspector agreed with the Council that only a small part of the site could be 
considered as being previously developed land with the result that he considered 
that both applications for housing could not be found to meet any of the exceptions 
listed within paragraph 145 or 146 of the NPPF. It was found that the Council’s 
argument that the applicant should provide affordable housing for the outline 
application was correct, although he did not state whether this should be based 
solely on the requirements set out within paragraph 64 of the NPPF or on the 
requirement set out within Policy SP7. The inspector agreed that both proposal 
would amount to poor design because they would not respect the character of the 
area and the new dwellings would appear cramped within the site when compared 

Page 39



to the immediate area. In conclusion, it was found that the appellant’s arguments 
to support the proposed developments were insufficient to overcome the harm to 
the Green Belt. It should be noted that although the inspector attached significant 
weighted to the Council’s current inability to demonstrate a five year supply of 
deliverable housing land this was insufficient to overcome the Green Belt harm.  

6/2018/1266/HOUSE

DCLG No: APP/C1950/D/18/3212808
Appeal By: Mrs S Britten

Site: 4 Hurst Close Welwyn Garden City AL7 2HX
Proposal: Erection of a two storey rear and part side extension, garage conversion, rear 

balcony and alterations to fenestrations
Decision: Appeal Allowed with Conditions

Decision Date: 03/04/2019
Delegated or DMC 
Decision:

Delegated

Summary: This application relates to a two storey rear and wrap around side extension in 
Hurst Close Welwyn. The road is a cul-de-sac and this application site is at the 
end. It was refused due to the extension being too large and not subordinate in 
scale or appearance to the original dwelling. The Inspector identified the main 
issue as the effect of the proposed development on the character and appearance 
of the area and concluded that the rear extension, although large, would be 
“sensitively designed and when viewed from the front” and would be seen as a 
“modest extension at first floor level”. The Inspector noted the concerns raised by 
neighbours regarding loss of light, privacy and view but considered the relationship 
between properties to be acceptable. The appeal was allowed subject to a number 
of conditions.

Page 40



Part I
Main author: Chris Carter
Executive Member: Councillor S.Boulton

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 25 APRIL 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND 
GOVERNANCE)

PLANNING UPDATE – FUTURE PLANNING APPLICATIONS

1          Introduction

1.1      This report is for the Development Management Committee to provide a summary of 
applications that might be presented to Committee over the coming months.  If the call-in 
or application is withdrawn, the item will not be presented.

1.2      The applications should not be debated as part of this agenda, however any Councillor 
wishing to raise specific points about the proposal – such as a need for planning 
obligations or issue(s) that might not readily be apparent from the proposal or any other 
matter, may do so and the case officer will consider, where they are planning 
considerations, these matters raised as part of the future Committee report.

1.3      Appendix 1 comprises all applications that have been called-in or objected to by Town or 
Parish Councils.  Appendix 2 comprises those that are a departure from the Local Plan, 
Officers consider should be determined by Development Management Committee, the 
applicant is the Borough Council or it has an interest in the land and an objection has 
been received.

2          Recommendation

2.1      That members note this report.

Name of author              Chris Carter
Title                                Development Management Service Manager

 

Page 41

Agenda Item 9



Appendix 1 - Applications called-in or objected to
ward description

6/2016/0270/VAR
Address Four Oaks 1-4 Great North Road Welwyn AL6 0PL
Proposal Variation of conditions 1 (occupants) and 2 (number of caravans) of 

Planning Permission N6/2010/0211/S73B to increase the number of 
caravans from 10 to 20 of which no more than 5 shall be static caravans or 
mobile homes.

Applicant Mr J Connors
Ward Welwyn West
Agent Mr M Green

Call-In/Objection 
from

Councillor Julie Cragg, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

Please can we call this in due to the fact that this raises a lot of issues of 
concern for the residents.
There is uneasiness about the fact that the number of caravans fluctuates 
wildly and that they residents do not appear to adhere to the planing that 
they do have.
The restrictions regarding children is there as this was not intended to be a 
permanent site but only to give stability to the children to enable them to 
attend school.
Are they planning to use caravans as an office sutie and run business's from 
there? [sic]

Call-In/Objection 
from

Caroline Williams, Welwyn Parish Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

15/03/2016 21:43 - Welwyn Parish Council at its Planning & Licensing 
Committee of the 15 March 2016 agreed to submit Major Objection.  We are 
unclear why the existing conditions have not been enforced.  We understand 
that the site was permitted as a temporary location linked to the schooling of 
the children which have now grown up and not as a permanent site.  We are 
concerned that the number of caravans has continued to increase overtime 
both with, and without, permission and Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
have previously stated that 10 is the maximum that can be accommodated.  
The existing conditions include that the land should be restored in 
accordance with the scheme previously submitted and approved by the 
planning authority as the residents may have already changed.

Case Officer Mrs Sarah Smith
Summary This application has not yet been presented to DMC as it is related to the 

adoption of the Local Plan

Page 42



6/2016/1493/VAR
Address Thunderbridge Yard Bulls Lane Hatfield AL9 7BB
Proposal Variation of condition 1 to extend the temporary permission; condition 3 to 

permit eight caravans of which no more than five would be static caravans; 
condition 4 to vary the approved drawings; and condition 5 to vary the site 
development scheme; of planning permission S6/2011/0116/FP

Applicant Mr J Robb
Ward Welham Green & Hatfield South
Agent Mrs A Heine

Call-In/Objection 
from

Councillor Paul Zukowskyj, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

I would like to formally 'call in ' this applicaiton as it meets at least two of the 
key criteria for a call in, namely 1. The application is of an unusually 
sensitive nature as the current use of the site has led to significant adverse 
impact on neighbours amenity and that development beyond that permitted 
had occurred at the site. 2. The wider ramifications are the potential impact 
of permitting this development may have on setting precedent for permitting 
neighbouring sites in the forthcoming local plan examination in public. There 
is also the precedent that would be set of permitting such developments, 
even for a limited period, in flood zones.

Call-In/Objection 
from

Sue Chudleigh, North Mymms Parish Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

NMPC OBJECT as this is clearly a new application. The name of the 
applicants is not the name to whom the extant  Permission was originally 
given.

The Government Planning Policy for traveller sites Policy E, in its 
introduction, states that making and decision taking should protect the Green 
Belt from inappropriate development - Item 4d and Item 16 state that 
inappropriate development is harmful to the Green Belt except in exceptional 
circumstances. None have been indicated. 

Item 4f - further states the local planning authority should aim to reduce the 
number of unauthorised developments and encampments.  This site has 
consistently exceeded the numbers stated in the original Permission and it is 
too small a site to be abused in this way.

Item 4k - states the local planning authority have to have due regard to the 
protection of local amenities and local environment.
There  have also been sanitary issues arising from the over-use of the site.
One or more travelling caravans have also been let to itinerant workers in 
contravention to the terms of the licence.  This has caused considerable 
problems to the neighbourhood.

Item 13 of the Planning Policy for traveller sites states the local planning 
authority should ensure that their policies:

Page 43



a)  promote peaceful and integrated co-existence between the site and the 
local community 

f)  avoid placing undue pressure on local infrastructure and services 

g)  do not locate sites in areas at high risk of flooding, including functional 
floodplains, given the particular vulnerability of caravans

Policy E, Item 24 addresses local provision and it is the case that WHBC do 
not have a firm policy on Gypsy and Traveller sites in the Borough but there 
are existing sites in Welham Green – including a long term Showmans site 
which causes no trouble – however the Foxes Lane site also is also over 
used as the numbers of caravans exceeds the permitted numbers.
Item 27 states that if a local planning authority cannot demonstrate an up to 
date 5 year supply of  deliverable sites this should be a material 
consideration and in this case the existing sites result in  over supply in 
Welham Green therefore any expansion is unwarranted.

Item 25 states that the local planning authority should very strictly limit 
traveller site development  in the Green Belt and further ….”sites in rural 
areas do not dominate the nearest settled  community.” Expansion of this 
site would cause stress on services and neighbours.

Item 16 Inappropriate development is harmful to the Green Belt and should 
not be approved, except in very special circumstances. Traveller sites 
(temporary or permanent) in the Green Belt are inappropriate development.  
Subject to the best interests of the child, personal circumstances and unmet 
need are unlikely to clearly outweigh harm to the Green Belt and any other 
harm so as to establish very special circumstances, none of which have 
been indicated in this case.

Item 24(a) The Local Planning Authority has to take into account the existing 
level of local provision and Welham Green currently has provision.  Indeed, 
even this is exceeded unlawfully – see report from Dennis Pennyfather, 
Licensing Technical Officer, dated 24 August 2016.

Item 25 This further states the Local Planning Authority should very strictly 
limit …. sites in rural areas should not dominate the nearest settled 
community.  Of late the activities at Thunderbridge Yard have caused 
extreme concern and disturbance to the neighbourhood.  Police and other 
authorities are aware of this, which seems to arise from the subletting of the 
excessive on-site accommodation to persons other than gypsies or 
travellers.

Footnote 9 States there is no presumption that a temporary grant of 
Planning Permission should be granted permanently, therefore North 
Mymms Parish Council consider, taking into account comments by Licensing 
Technical Officer that the site is not big enough, there are fire safety issues 
and this is a known flood plain with previous flooding issues, caravans on 
this Green Belt site are inappropriate development.

Page 44



Case Officer Mr Mark Peacock
Summary This application has not yet been presented to DMC as it is related to the 

adoption of the Local Plan

6/2017/0606/MAJ
Address 1-9 Town Centre Hatfield AL10 0JZ
Proposal Erection of 2 buildings to provide 1,194m2 (GEA) commercial floor space 

(A1 & A3), 70 flats (15 x 1 bedroom, 7 x 2 bedroom, three person and 48 x 2 
bedroom, four person) with associated car/bicycle parking, plant and refuse 
storage and including the improvement of public realm, following the 
demolition of existing buildings.

Applicant Mr P Brimley
Ward Hatfield Cent.
Agent Mr P Wellings-Longmore

Call-In/Objection 
from

Carrie Lloyd, Hatfield Town Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

Object: The Town Council is concerned at the impact of parking from new 
residential units on the retail parking spaces available.  The Council has 
repeatedly asked that design of new structures in the Town is sympathetic to 
existing Hatfield designs but again we see another architect imposing their 
design on our Town making it an uncoordinated mismatch of urban design 
from different decades with no empathy to the historic nature of the Town.  
Members are concerned at the impact of the level 7 building on the Grade 1 
listed building of Hatfield House.  Members consider that a community 
facility needs to be included within the design.

Case Officer Mr Mark Peacock
Summary This application has been held in abeyance pending further work on the 

wider Hatfield Town Centre regeneration project.

6/2018/1635/OUTLINE
Address Historic De Havilland Grass Runway

Ellenbrook fields Hatfield Buisness park
Hatfield Herts

Proposal Outline permission for the change of use of land to airfield with runway and 
support facilities including a clubhouse, hangar and car park with all matters 
except layout reserved

Applicant Mr C Fitch

Page 45



Ward Hatfield Villages
Call-In/Objection 
from

Councillor Duncan Bell, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

i would like to conditionally call in the above planning application, which 
appears to be for an airfield within Ellenbrook Fields.

This will, as for 6/2018/1354, be a conditional call-in, in that it will only need 
to come to DMC if Planning Department recommend approval.

My ground for calling this in are:

• There is a considerable potential for noise nuisance over a wide area of 
Ellenbrook, Salisbury Village, and Hatfield Garden Village.
• Just as for application 6/2018/1354, the applicant seems to envisage that 
S106 monies can be used to help finance the project.  S106 monies will be a 
scarce resource in the context of the WHBC Local Plan.  They are 
essentially public resources infrastructure needs associated with Local Plan 
development.  This should not include private flying facilities.
• There is no airfield at Panshanger to "replace".
• My understanding is that there is an entirely separate S106 commitment 
associated with a 2017 mineral extraction application to restore Ellenbrook 
Fields as a country park.  It is unclear how this application would fit with this 
prior commitment. 

Case Officer Mr Mark Peacock
Summary The DMC date for this application is yet to be determined.

6/2018/2129/FULL
Address 111 The Ryde Hatfield AL9 5DP
Proposal Retrospective change of use from single dwelling (Use Class C3) to small 

HMO for up to three to six persons (Use Class C4)
Applicant Mr I Kabala
Ward Hatfield East
Agent Mr A Huseyin

Call-In/Objection 
from

Councillor Caroline Gillett, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

I wish to call in the application 6/2018/2129 Full in respect of the 
retrospective change of use from
single dwelling (Use Class C3) to small HMO for up to three to six persons 
(Use Class C4). 111 The
Ryde.

Page 46



The main reason for calling in is the lack of parking in lines with policy and I 
draw the officers’ attention to the actual crossover and depth of in-curtilage 
as opposed to that drawn on the architect’s submission. Parking of 5.25 cars 
would be required as a minimum and using the cross over only space for

 3. Also, the depth of the in-curtilage is 5.3m and not 6m as stated.

Whilst calling this in I would like to draw your attention to the following in 
connection with the submission (1325/PL/AH)

In 
Section 2 – The Proposal reference is made to the conversion of the garage 
into a store for bins. This was advised to be happening by March 2018 in a 
previous application, and I am presuming the garage was built under 
previous planning granted in 2008 with a 3 year time frame, as this garage 
was refused in January this year.

Section 4.2 – the submission has failed to highlight bedroom 3

I note the kitchen is 6.7 sqm which is within HMO requirements for up to 5 
rooms. I question why 2 kitchens are needed to share between 3 rooms 
when only one shower/bathroom between 3 rooms. The additional kitchen is 
shown as in the lounge/diner/kitchen which is currently used as a bedsit.

Section 4.4 – advises that the front door is the main entrance for all 
occupants. It is know that the garage door is an entrance currently used by 
at least one occupant.

The garage is “being converted to a storage facility” – this has been on-
going for 8 months.

Section 6 – parking

6.1 refers to 3 bedsits at 1.25 spaces equating to 4 and 3 HMO bedrooms 
giving rise to 1 space which does not comply with 0.5 per room. Parking 
should therefore be 5.25 spaces which equates to 6 rounded up.

6.2 The depth of the property is advised as 6m when in fact 2/3 of the 
frontage is 5.3 up to the front brickwork. This means that cars would be 
parking directly under the window of bedsit 3

Section 7 – refuse.

The existing bins 3 in total and capacity within the garage.  There are at 
least 4 bins, often overflowing (photographic evidence from residents) and 
are stored on the front left of the property.

Page 47



Section 8 – landscaping

The statement in the submission is misleading. The frontage had indeed 
been altered to increase the
hard standing across the width of the site. The property has 100% hard 
standing and the trees that were at the side of the property have been 
removed.

The house has been extended to the maximum at each boundary and is not 
typical of The Ryde where other houses have at least one side access and 
all have a fair proportion of soft landscaping as well as open carparking. I am 
not aware of any that have parking across the full width or the full depth of 
the property.

It is also worth noting that the tree on the left of the property has had the 
right side branches removed to allow parking to the left of the property 
accessed over the grass verge.

Case Officer Mr Mark Peacock
Summary This application is pending confirmation of further details regarding vehicular 

access and will be presented to DMC once this has been resolved. 

6/2018/2552/FULL
Address Maynard House 1 The Common Hatfield AL10 0NF
Proposal Part demolition of outbuildings to the rear of the existing building, infilling 

within the existing building at the rear and a second floor extension to 
provide 8 no. two bedroom apartments; car parking; refuse and recycling 
store

Applicant James Taylor Homes Ltd. 
Ward Hatfield Cent.
Agent Mr S Rackham

Call-In/Objection 
from

Councillor Glyn Hayes, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

30/10/2018 19:43 - I wish to call this in for the following points.

This application does nothing to assist the regeneration of the town centre 
and enhance its vitality and viability.

The design is based on the current out of date building and not the modern 
up to date look we expect from our developers. This is against our D1 policy.

It cites flat roof buildings around it however these are out dated buildings in 

Page 48



desperate need of modernisation. Instead the developer should look to the 
residential building next to it with a modern fresh look with a pitched roof.

With that in mind a 2 story pitched roof would be more in keeping.
Because the developer states the materials used will reflect the existing 
building again it will look outdated.

The proposal is in Zone 1 however the nearest bus hub is located at the train 
station for this reason 1.5 spaces per dwelling should be used as there is no 
on street parking on this road for significant amounts of time.
If this is not acceptable then a 1 car/car free purchaser legally binding 
agreement should be enforced and supported as per our guidelines.

Plans do not show a dedicated disabled space with side access for a 
wheelchair.

The development goes against policy TCR20 as it is removing leisure 
facilities and not providing an alternative.

 I and the public would expect as a minimum all conservative councillors to 
declare a financial interest in this proposal as they are all members of this 
club and would benefit by this. Then they should leave the room. Leaving a 
minimum quorum to complete the business.

To sum up this is a outdated development that will do nothing to enhance 
our town but will serve to keep it looking tired for many more years.
30/10/2018 19:44 - I wish to call this in for the following points.

This application does nothing to assist the regeneration of the town centre 
and enhance its vitality and viability.

The design is based on the current out of date building and not the modern 
up to date look we expect from our developers. This is against our D1 policy.

It cites flat roof buildings around it however these are out dated buildings in 
desperate need of modernisation. Instead the developer should look to the 
residential building next to it with a modern fresh look with a pitched roof.

With that in mind a 2 story pitched roof would be more in keeping.
Because the developer states the materials used will reflect the existing 
building again it will look outdated.

The proposal is in Zone 1 however the nearest bus hub is located at the train 
station for this reason 1.5 spaces per dwelling should be used as there is no 
on street parking on this road for significant amounts of time.
If this is not acceptable then a 1 car/car free purchaser legally binding 
agreement should be enforced and supported as per our guidelines.

Plans do not show a dedicated disabled space with side access for a 
wheelchair.

Page 49



The development goes against policy TCR20 as it is removing leisure 
facilities and not providing an alternative.

 I and the public would expect as a minimum all conservative councillors to 
declare a financial interest in this proposal as they are all members of this 
club and would benefit by this. Then they should leave the room. Leaving a 
minimum quorum to complete the business.

To sum up this is a outdated development that will do nothing to enhance 
our town but will serve to keep it looking tired for many more years.
30/10/2018 19:49 - I wish to call this in for the following points.

This application does nothing to assist the regeneration of the town centre 
and enhance its vitality and viability.

The design is based on the current out of date building and not the modern 
up to date look we expect from our developers. This is against our D1 policy.

It cites flat roof buildings around it however these are out dated buildings in 
desperate need of modernisation. Instead the developer should look to the 
residential building next to it with a modern fresh look with a pitched roof.

With that in mind a 2 story pitched roof would be more in keeping.
Because the developer states the materials used will reflect the existing 
building again it will look outdated.

The proposal is in Zone 1 however the nearest bus hub is located at the train 
station for this reason 1.5 spaces per dwelling should be used as there is no 
on street parking on this road for significant amounts of time.
If this is not acceptable then a 1 car/car free purchaser legally binding 
agreement should be enforced and supported as per our guidelines.

Plans do not show a dedicated disabled space with side access for a 
wheelchair.

The development goes against policy TCR20 as it is removing leisure 
facilities and not providing an alternative.

 I and the public would expect as a minimum all conservative councillors to 
declare a financial interest in this proposal as they are all members of this 
club and would benefit by this. Then they should leave the room. Leaving a 
minimum quorum to complete the business.

To sum up this is a outdated development that will do nothing to enhance 
our town but will serve to keep it looking tired for many more years.
30/10/2018 19:50 - I wish to call this in for the following points.

This application does nothing to assist the regeneration of the town centre 
and enhance its vitality and viability.

Page 50



The design is based on the current out of date building and not the modern 
up to date look we expect from our developers. This is against our D1 policy.

It cites flat roof buildings around it however these are out dated buildings in 
desperate need of modernisation. Instead the developer should look to the 
residential building next to it with a modern fresh look with a pitched roof.

With that in mind a 2 story pitched roof would be more in keeping.
Because the developer states the materials used will reflect the existing 
building again it will look outdated.

The proposal is in Zone 1 however the nearest bus hub is located at the train 
station for this reason 1.5 spaces per dwelling should be used as there is no 
on street parking on this road for significant amounts of time.
If this is not acceptable then a 1 car/car free purchaser legally binding 
agreement should be enforced and supported as per our guidelines.

Plans do not show a dedicated disabled space with side access for a 
wheelchair.

The development goes against policy TCR20 as it is removing leisure 
facilities and not providing an alternative.

 I and the public would expect as a minimum all conservative councillors to 
declare a financial interest in this proposal as they are all members of this 
club and would benefit by this. Then they should leave the room. Leaving a 
minimum quorum to complete the business.

To sum up this is a outdated development that will do nothing to enhance 
our town but will serve to keep it looking tired for many more years.
30/10/2018 19:50 - I wish to call this in for the following points.

This application does nothing to assist the regeneration of the town centre 
and enhance its vitality and viability.

The design is based on the current out of date building and not the modern 
up to date look we expect from our developers. This is against our D1 policy.

It cites flat roof buildings around it however these are out dated buildings in 
desperate need of modernisation. Instead the developer should look to the 
residential building next to it with a modern fresh look with a pitched roof.

With that in mind a 2 story pitched roof would be more in keeping.
Because the developer states the materials used will reflect the existing 
building again it will look outdated.

The proposal is in Zone 1 however the nearest bus hub is located at the train 
station for this reason 1.5 spaces per dwelling should be used as there is no 
on street parking on this road for significant amounts of time.

Page 51



If this is not acceptable then a 1 car/car free purchaser legally binding 
agreement should be enforced and supported as per our guidelines.

Plans do not show a dedicated disabled space with side access for a 
wheelchair.

The development goes against policy TCR20 as it is removing leisure 
facilities and not providing an alternative.

 I and the public would expect as a minimum all conservative councillors to 
declare a financial interest in this proposal as they are all members of this 
club and would benefit by this. Then they should leave the room. Leaving a 
minimum quorum to complete the business.

To sum up this is a outdated development that will do nothing to enhance 
our town but will serve to keep it looking tired for many more years.

Case Officer Ms Lucy Hale
Address Maynard House 1 The Common Hatfield AL10 0NF
Proposal Part demolition of outbuildings to the rear of the existing building, infilling 

within the existing building at the rear and a second floor extension to 
provide 8 no. two bedroom apartments; car parking; refuse and recycling 
store

Applicant James Taylor Homes Ltd. 
Ward Hatfield Cent.
Agent Mr S Rackham

Call-In/Objection 
from

Councillor Glyn Hayes, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

I note some changes have taken place however it doesn’t satisfy my original 
call in.
My position on this matter hasn’t changed and the original call in should 
remain.

Kind regards 

Cllr Hayes

Case Officer Ms Lucy Hale
Summary This application is anticipated to be presented to DMC in May or June 2019

Page 52



6/2018/2768/OUTLINE
Address Hatfield Business Park Hatfield AL10 9SL
Proposal Outline application for a large-scale mixed use development including 1,100 

new homes and supporting infrastructure including a primary school, local 
centre and open space with all matters reserved

Applicant Arlington Business Parks 
Ward Hatfield Villages
Agent Mr M Hill

Call-In/Objection 
from

Councillor Duncan Bell, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

I would like to conditionally call-in the above application.  Conditional in the 
sense that i would only ask for it to be brought before DMC if Planning 
Department is minded to recommend approval.

My grounds for calling this in are:

• The size and scale of the proposed development make it a matter of 
significant public interest.
• The proposal is on Green Belt land, and would risk coalescence with the 
eastern outskirts of St Albans.
• The site is not one of those accepted for development as part of our 
current Local Plan submission. 

I will be making a more detailed set of representations once i have studied 
the plans in more detail, but i would be grateful if you could log my call-in on 
to the system as soon as possible.

Thank you for your assistance.

Case Officer Ms Gill Claxton
Summary It is anticipated that this application will be presented to DMC later in 2019

6/2018/3030/FULL
Address 70 Wood Close Hatfield AL10 8TX
Proposal Retrospective change of use from a dwelling house (use class C3) to a large 

HMO (sui generis) with up to seven persons
Applicant Ms Z Laskar
Ward Hatfield East
Agent Ms Z Laskar

Call-In/Objection 
from

Carrie Lloyd, Hatfield Town Council

Page 53



Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

14/03/2019 10:44 - 
In accordance with the Amenity Standards for Licensable and  Non-
licensable Houses in Multiple Occupation (December 2015) the application 
fails to meet the required standards because;
 Bedroom 1 has no window
 There are not enough bathrooms and toilets
 There are no bike stores
 There are no bin stores
 Bedroom 4 does not meet the Regulations for size
 Parking provision is not shown and Members are not aware if there is 
sufficient

Case Officer Ms Lucy Hale
Summary This application is likely to be presented to DMC in May or June 2019.

6/2018/3170/HOUSE
Address 16 Roe Green Close Hatfield AL10 9PE
Proposal Erection of single storey front and side extension and part single, part two 

storey rear extension
Applicant Mr & Mrs E Lamuren
Ward Hatfield South West
Agent Mr S Cook

Call-In/Objection 
from

Carrie Lloyd, Hatfield Town Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

10/01/2019 08:24 - The size and bulk of the cumulative effect of all the 
extensions is not acceptable as it doubles the footprint of the property.  
Members acknowledge the concerns of neighbouring properties.

Case Officer Ms Lucy Hale
Address 16 Roe Green Close Hatfield AL10 9PE
Proposal Erection of single storey front and side extension and part single, part two 

storey rear extension
Applicant Mr & Mrs E Lamuren
Ward Hatfield South West
Agent Mr S Cook

Call-In/Objection 
from

Carrie Lloyd, Hatfield Town Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

1/02/2019 12:50 - Our previous comments on this application still stand

Case Officer Ms Lucy Hale
Summary This application is likely to be presented to DMC in May or June 2019

Page 54



6/2019/0085/MAJ
Address Chancellors School, Pine Grove, Brookmans Park, Hatfield, AL9 7BN
Proposal Erection of building comprising sports hall with associated changing facilities 

and 7 x classrooms built on existing hard play tennis courts; 4 x hard play 
sports pitches to be provided to replace existing; provision of 33 x parking 
spaces; and two mobile classrooms to be provided for the duration of the 
project

Applicant Mr J Buoy
Ward Brookmans Park & Little Heath
Agent Mr D Carmichael

Call-In/Objection 
from

Sue Chudleigh, North Mymms Parish Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

12/02/2019 10:18 - NMPC: North Mymms Parish Council maintain their 
MAJOR OBJECTION for all previous reasons given in respect of application 
reference 6/2018/2178/FULL as follows:

“North Mymms Parish Council has a MAJOR OBJECTION to this 
application. It must be a Condition that the temporary classrooms be 
removed before occupation of the new classrooms occur (otherwise they will 
never go). The design is unimaginative and the materials proposed 
industrial, which for a Green Belt site show a lack of sympathy from the 
designers for the natural surroundings. The constant use of grey in colour 
schemes will date the building in the short term. The proposed building will 
be visible to users of The Drive, Ash Close and Golf Course Road. The Wow 
factor alluded to in the Design and Access Statement will be of no 
consequence to this assault on the Green Belt which does not meet high 
quality design as required by NPPF. It is recognised that additional teaching 
space and sports facilities are needed at the School, however the proposal 
will have an impact on the openness and character of the area beyond the 
School boundary. The additional car parking required to accommodate extra 
staff and the expansion of the pupil numbers is of concern as traffic flow at 
the junction of Pine Grove, Georges Wood Road and the A1000 are not 
reflected accurately in the Transport Assessment which states that traffic 
conditions at peak times (2.2.1) on both Brookmans Avenue/Georges Wood 
Road and the A1000 is low. This is nonsense. The local bus service is poor 
and the train station some distance away so travel for those coming on these 
will be precarious. The likelihood is that more car journeys will result from 
additional numbers and this will impact on the village and main highway. The 
Assessment does not accurately the dreadful parking in Pine Grove around 
the School. A Green Travel Plan as outlined in the Travel Assessment and 
referencing HCC’s Local Transport Plan, is theoretically good but must form 
a Condition of the Planning Approval. There is scant mention of 
Sustainability in the Design and Access Statement which causes concern. 
We mention this because it is an element of the NPPF and the materials 
chosen are not particularly sustainable because of the manufacturing 
processes needed to produce them. There is no mention of heating and how 
this will be achieved - although there is one paragraph under the heading 

Page 55



Sustainability, which refers to ventilation and insulation, all of which is 
covered by Building Regulations. Heating a huge void in a sports hall is a 
serious business and the environmental impact should not be ignored in a 
major application such as this.”

In addition, although the special circumstance proposed is the increase in 
school places, the poor design, lack of consideration for the Green Belt 
location and effect on the openness of the site, will cause detrimental impact 
and harm.

It is disingenuous (Page 17, Paragraph 3) of the school to state they do not 
intend to increase staff numbers with the increase in pupils. An additional 
210 pupils will surely require at the very least additional ancillary staff.

North Mymms Parish Council note that there is a new Travel Assessment. 
However, there are inaccuracies in it and other matters of concern. It should 
be noted that Georges Wood Road is a private road. Therefore whilst access 
across it is permissible it is a major concern for residents who have to pay to 
maintain it. Increased numbers will exacerbate the traffic on this route. It is 
noted that the majority of pupils and staff live more than 3 miles away. 
Therefore, there will be more journeys when the school expands, which 
alongside the inconsiderate parking in Pine Grove - the provision of 33 extra 
car parking spaces, will not improve the parking issues experienced in and 
around the area.
Staggered arrivals/departures does not allow for cars arriving early and 
parking whilst waiting for pupils to enter or leave the school via Pine Grove. 
Referring to Item 3.9 (Bus Timetable) – This clearly indicates that at least 2 
buses (200 and 201) are unavailable for travel owing to times of 
arrival/departure nearest the school. 
Referring to Item 3.12 (Rail Services). This information is inaccurate and 
misleading as Great Northern only operate 2 services out of peak morning 
rush hour and as Brookmans Park and Welham Green stations are not on 
the fast line, only, “All Stops” trains allow disembarkation during the morning 
rush hour and there are only 2 services in either direction in the afternoons, 
half an hour apart. Both train stations are over a mile from the school and 
indeed access to Welham Green station by walking is dangerous, 
particularly in the winter months when the weather can be inclement and it is 
dark.
The proposed design is a missed opportunity as an industrial box is not 
fitting for a rural location.

Case Officer Mr David Elmore
Summary This application is anticipated to be presented to DMC in May 2019

Page 56



6/2019/0217/MAJ
Address Northaw House Coopers Lane Northaw Potters Bar EN6 4NG
Proposal Conversion of Northaw House to form 11 apartments (including 

refurbishment of existing single caretaker’s flat) and underground parking 
area, the Ballroom Wing to form 2 dwellings, the Stable Block to form 1 
dwelling, refurbishment of existing dwelling at Oak Cottage, construction of 2 
Gate Lodge dwellings, 3 dwellings within the Walled Garden, 7 dwellings 
within the Settlement Area, refurbishment of the Walled Garden, 
refurbishment of access routes and reinstatement of old route, provision of 
hard and soft landscaping, car parking and supporting infrastructure

Applicant Mr L Williamson
Ward Northaw and Cuffley
Agent Mr T Waller

Call-In/Objection 
from

The Clerk, Northaw & Cuffley Parish Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

7/03/2019 20:59 - Not sustainable. Remote location. Public transport 
insufficient. Limited bus service.  Village offers limited services and cars 
would be essential for shopping and employment.

New buildings on Green Belt are unacceptable as 
it has an adverse impact on openness.  This is over development of the site.

 Traffic access improvements at west end inadequate ( simply narrowing 
junction and changing road markings & signage) and it is a dangerous bend.  
At east end, Design Statement is contradictory - is this a pedestrian or 
vehicular access?  If vehicular, there is a dangerous bend and dip in the 
road.
  The Special Circumstances of additional buildings funding work on historic 
buildings is not justified.  This would impact on the Green Belt gap between 
Northaw and Potters Bar.  The development is socially unsustainable as it is 
not mixed housing and has no affordable housing included.
22/03/2019 17:06 - The publicly available viability assessment is not 
sufficiently detailed to enable third parties to be in a position to make a 
judgement as to whether the extent of enabling development is reasonable.  
Whilst it is recognised that the parties to that assessment are proven 
professionals, the global figures in the published document are insufficient to 
enable third parties to take an informed view.  The siting and design of the 
proposals within the walled garden and the settlement area are incongruous 
and out of character with existing buildings.  Development should be phased 
such that the renovation should be done first.  We expect there should be a 
S106 contribution.

Case Officer Mr William Myers
Summary This application is likely to be presented to DMC in June 2019

Page 57



6/2019/0218/LB
Address Northaw House Coopers Lane Northaw Potters Bar EN6 4NG
Proposal Conversion of Northaw House to form 11 apartments (including 

refurbishment of existing single caretaker’s flat) and underground parking 
area, the Ballroom Wing to form 2 dwellings, the Stable Block to form 1 
dwelling, refurbishment of existing dwelling at Oak Cottage, construction of 2 
Gate Lodge dwellings, 3 dwellings within the Walled Garden, 7 dwellings 
within the Settlement Area, refurbishment of the Walled Garden, 
refurbishment of access routes and reinstatement of old route, provision of 
hard and soft landscaping, car parking and supporting infrastructure

Applicant Mr L Williamson
Ward Northaw and Cuffley
Agent Mr T Waller

Call-In/Objection 
from

The Clerk, Northaw & Cuffley Parish Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

7/03/2019 21:00 - Not sustainable. Remote location. Public transport 
insufficient. Limited bus service.  Village offers limited services and cars 
would be essential for shopping and employment.

New buildings on Green Belt are unacceptable as it has an adverse impact 
on openness.  This is over development of the site.

 Traffic access improvements at west end inadequate ( simply narrowing 
junction and changing road markings & signage) and it is a dangerous bend.  
At east end, Design Statement is contradictory - is this a pedestrian or 
vehicular access?  If vehicular, there is a dangerous bend and dip in the 
road.
The Special Circumstances of additional buildings funding work on historic 
buildings is not justified.  This would impact on the Green Belt gap between 
Northaw and Potters Bar.  The development is socially unsustainable as it is 
not mixed housing and has no affordable housing included.

Case Officer Mr William Myers
Summary This application is likely to be presented to DMC in June 2019

6/2019/0455/FULL
Address 151 Campion Road Hatfield AL10 9FL
Proposal Change of use from class C3 dwelling house to class C4 HMO

Applicant Miss S Wood
Ward Hatfield Villages
Agent Mr P Pulzer

Page 58



Call-In/Objection 
from

Carrie Lloyd, Hatfield Town Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

14/03/2019 10:43 - In accordance with the Amenity Standards for Licensable 
and Non-licensable Houses in Multiple Occupation (December 2015) the 
proposed kitchen will not meet the required standard as it fails to provide 
sufficient work space, indicates only on a single sink bowl, provides 
insufficient fridge/freezer space and does not have sufficient oven and hob 
provision.
The plans show a toilet without hand washing facilities.
Members question the means of escape from the loft room in case of fire.

Case Officer Mr William Myers
Summary This application is likely to be presented to DMC in May or June 2019

6/2019/0457/FULL
Address Land north of Harmer Green Lane Welwyn AL6 0ET
Proposal Erection of a 1 x eco house dwelling following demolition of existing stables

Applicant Mr C Malcolm
Ward Welwyn East
Agent Ms A Idris-Town

Call-In/Objection 
from

Caroline Williams, Welwyn Parish Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

26/03/2019 21:58 - Welwyn Parish Council at its Planning and Licensing 
committee meeting of the 26th March 2019 agreed to submit:
MAJOR OBJECTION
Welwyn Parish Council view the statement in 3.15 within the Planning 
Statement "the property remains affordable following construction" with 
skepticism and puzzlement as to how the property will remain affordable in 
the future.
We do not recognise this development as an eco-house and therefore it 
does not form a special circumstance for development in the Green Belt. 

Case Officer Mr Tom Gabriel
Summary This application is likely to be presented to DMC in June 2019

Page 59



6/2019/0516/FULL
Address 53A Roe Green Close Hatfield AL10 9PF
Proposal Erection of 1 x dwelling with associated 2 car-parking spaces, 4 secured 

bicycle stands and refuse and recycle bin store
Applicant Mr M Apicella
Ward Hatfield South West
Agent Mr N Lisowski

Call-In/Objection 
from

Councillor James Broach, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

4/04/2019 09:27 - I wish to call this application in to DMC - reasons are in 
the attached file. 

Case Officer Ms Lucy Hale
Summary This application is likely to be presented to DMC in June 2019

6/2019/0564/RM
Address Land at Waterbeach Bericot Way and Shackleton Way 

Welwyn Garden City AL7 2PT
Proposal Approval of reserved matters (appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) 

for the erection of 21 dwellings on approved outline planning permission 
6/2017/2202/OUTLINE dated 04/01/2018

Applicant Chalkdene Developments
Ward Panshanger
Agent Mrs R Gray

Call-In/Objection 
from

Councillor Terry Mitchinson, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

I have been contacted by various people living nearby with regards the 
design and especially the placing of the affordable homes directly next to 
existing properties.
There is also no mention of an entrance onto the main road (bericot way) 
rather than off waterbeach. Something I originally asked to be considered.
I need to ensure people’s views are represented; they already feel they are 
being ridden roughshod over with two of the strategic sites being in that part 
of WGC.
They claim the ‘consultation’ by developers was cursory and aimed at 
disguising the final layout.
I have tried the link and cannot get to the application itself to check details 
more carefully; it only links me to the calling in form.

Case Officer Ms A Christophi
Summary This application is likely to be presented to DMC in either May or June 2019

Page 60



6/2019/0616/HOUSE
Address 16 The Holdings Hatfield AL9 5HQ
Proposal Erection of single storey front and side extension, two storey side extension 

and part single part two storey rear extension to include rear Juliet balcony 
and glass feature to front elevation

Applicant Mr U Patel
Ward Hatfield East
Agent Mr S Cook

Call-In/Objection 
from

Carrie Lloyd, Hatfield Town Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

4/04/2019 14:59 - Members consider the extensions over development of 
the site , out of character with neighbouring properties and having an 
adverse impact on those neighbours.  The mass and bulk of the extensions 
taken together are too big and contrary to NNPF and supplementary 
guidance.

Call-In/Objection 
from

Councillor Peter Hebden, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

Comments:
I would like to call in this application if the planning officers are minded to 
support the application.
Although improved upon the previous application, the scale and design of 
the proposed changes fail to address the issue of any development being 
sympathetic to the streetscene and the development would be overbearing 
and out of character to neighbouring properties. 
This application is contrary to Policies D1 and D2of the Welwyn Hatfield 
District Plan 2005.

Case Officer Mr William Myers
Summary This application is likely to be presented to DMC in June or July 2019

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 - All other applications not comprising call-ins or objections

ward description
6/2017/0606/MAJ

Address 1-9 Town Centre Hatfield AL10 0JZ
Proposal Erection of 2 buildings to provide 1,194m2 (GEA) commercial floor space (A1 

& A3), 70 flats (15 x 1 bedroom, 7 x 2 bedroom, three person and 48 x 2 
bedroom, four person) with associated car/bicycle parking, plant and refuse 
storage and including the improvement of public realm, following the 
demolition of existing buildings.

Applicant Mr P Brimley
Ward Hatfield Cent.
Agent Mr P Wellings-Longmore

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

The applicant is Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council and the proposal is major 
development which should be considered by the Committee.

Case Officer Mr Mark Peacock

S6/2015/1342/PP
Address Land to the north east of King George V Playing Fields, Northaw Road East, 

Cuffley, Hertfordshire, EN6 4RD
Proposal Outline planning application for residential development of up to 121 

dwellings, associated infrastructure and a change of use from agricultural 
land to an extension of the King George V playing field.  All matters reserved 
except for new vehicular access to serve the site, the provision of surface 
water discharge points and the levels of development platforms

Applicant Lands Improvement Holdings Landmatch
Ward Northaw and Cuffley
Agent Mr M Smith

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

The application is of a scale, sensitive nature or is controversial and officer’s 
consider that in accordance with the Council’s constitution, it should be 
determined by the Development Management Committee.   Additionally, the 
application is a departure from the provisions of the appropriate development 
plan, other policy guidance or supplementary planning guidance.

Case Officer Mr Mark Peacock

Page 63



Page 64



Part I
Main Author: Chris Carter

Executive Member: Cllr S. Boulton

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE – 25 APRIL 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE)
 

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT

JANUARY – MARCH 2019

(All wards)

1 Introduction

1.1 This report relates to the performance of the Development Management Service 
over the three month period January to March 2019.  

1.2 Members should note that, whilst this quarter is traditionally considered to be 
quarter four of the financial year, the planning department software considers this 
to be quarter one, as with the calendar year. Therefore Members will see that 
some of the graphs reflect both of these approaches.

2 Recommendation

2.1 That Members note the content of this report. 

3 Application Numbers

3.1 The graphs below show the number of applications that have been received 
during the last three quarters of 2018 and the first quarter of 2019.  In summary, 
in quarter 2 of 2018 748 applications were received, in quarter 3 658 applications 
were received, in quarter 4 696 applications were received and in quarter 1 of 
2019 708 applications were received.

Page 65

Agenda Item 10



Major applications are those with 10 or more dwellings, sites of 1 hectare or 
more, or provision of 1,000m² new floor area or more.

Minor applications include (but are not limited to) up to 9 dwellings, gypsy and 
traveller sites and commercial proposals not falling within the major category.

Others include (but are not limited to) householder, advertisements and listed 
building applications. 

The ‘non countable’ category are those applications which are not reported to the 
Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG).  Such applications 
include, but are not limited to: prior approvals, discharge of conditions, etc.  

Estate Management applications are not planning applications and therefore are 
subject to different policies and regulations compared to planning.  However, 
they continue to comprise a significant amount of the department’s work and 
have therefore been reported separately for information.  These applications 
include proposals for both built development and for landscaping (tree/hedge 
removal) proposals.  

3.2 From the graph above, it can be seen that Estate Management, Non-countable 
and Householders remain the greatest number submitted. As with the previous 
quarters, new application numbers continue to hover between 650 and 750 and 
so officer workloads have therefore remained higher than is desired. It is 
anticipated that the new proposals for dealing with Estate Management 
applications, in a separate team, will serve to reduce planning officer workloads 
to a more manageable level. It is hoped that these arrangements will be in place 
later in 2019.

4 Performance

Applications

4.1 Government (MHCLG) monitor planning authorities on their speed of making 
decisions in relation to major and non-major applications.  The target at national 
level is to determine 60% of major applications within the statutory period of 13 
weeks or subject to the agreement of a time extension over a rolling two-year 
period.  In addition, the Council has a local performance indicator for majors of 
70%.  For non-majors, it is 70% over a two-year period.  For authorities who 
under-perform against this target, they will be classed as ‘poorly performing’ and 
applications for major development may be made by developers directly to the 
Planning Inspectorate should the target be missed.  The Council would not 
receive the fees for these but would be expected to deal with all of the associated 
administration.  

The following graph relates to the percentage of planning applications 
determined within set timescales. 

Page 66



100 100 100

85.7

87
83.7

75

80.8

93

86.9 88.6

86.2

Quarter to end of Jun 18 Quarter to end of Sep 18 Quarter to end of Dec 18 Quarter to end of Mar 19
40

50

60

70

80

90

100

110

Majors Minors Others

Speed of Decisions

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge

4.2 Over the last quarter performance for majors has dropped slightly to 85.7%. This 
is due to 1 out of 7 major applications in the quarter being determined out of time. 
This illustrates how sensitive this indicator is due to the comparatively small 
number of major applications being determined. Performance for others has 
fallen marginally from 88.6% to 86.2%, continuing to closely follow the longer 
term average, with performance for minors rising to 80.8%. As the chart 
demonstrates, performance for minor applications does tend to fluctuate more 
over the course of a year. Decisions are still being made within both statutory 
and local targets.

These targets do continue to be achieved due to seeking time extensions for 
dealing with the applications beyond their statutory time period from applicants.  
Time extensions might be sought for a variety of reasons but might include 
seeking negotiations, complex and/or controversial proposals and items 
presented to Committee.  Time extensions do not go against the authority in 
terms of speed of decision making when reporting to the government.  The graph 
below shows the total number of applications determined each month in blue and 
alongside this in yellow are the number of applications where time extensions 
have been sought on those determined.  Seeking time extensions means that 
case officer workloads overall increase which makes dealing with newer 
applications on time more challenging.  Over the longer term, approximately 25% 
of all applications determined are subject to a time extension. 

Page 67



4.3 Of the decisions reported above, the following graphs show the number of 
decisions that were granted, refused, split (i.e. part granted and part refused) and 
withdrawn across the major, minor and other categories.  All three graphs 
demonstrate that the majority of applications are granted. Withdrawals are not 
reported as part of our overall performance to government but still will have 
involved a significant amount of work by the case officers. These applications are 
frequently resubmitted often as a ‘free go’.

Page 68



Landscaping

4.4 As with previous quarters, the performance of the landscaping team is being 
reported to enable Members to understand some of the work undertaken by 
landscape and tree officers which is not already reported to other committees 
such as the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

4.5 The landscaping team is responsible for dealing with applications relating to Tree 
Preservation Orders (TPOs), applications for works to trees in Conservation 
Areas and Estate Management applications where works are proposed to trees 
or hedges.  They are also involved in masterplanning for strategic, and other 
large, sites to advise on landscaping and planting plans.

4.6 In the region of 200 applications per annum are received which are Estate 
Management and 300 TPO and works to trees in Conservation Area applications.  
Applications for works to trees in Conservation Areas require the Council to 
determine whether or not the tree should be protected by a TPO.  Decisions 
should be made within 6-weeks and the Order issued within this timescale.  If a 
decision is not made on the first day of the 7th week, the applicant may undertake 
the works that they were seeking consent for.  

Page 69



4.7 The following graphs show the number of TPO and conservation area 
applications determined each month and whether they were determined within 
the statutory timescales. This shows little consistency with the number of 
applications received each month making resourcing more difficult and the 
number of decisions made in time are sensitive to changes in officer capacity. It 
should be noted however that where the Tree Officer identifies a potential risk to 
a tree of value, this is normally determined within the statutory period in order 
that further protection for the tree can be put in place if necessary.

4.8 The graph below shows the number of decisions made on TPO’s and Trees in 
Conservation Areas during the reporting period. The Landscape Officer tries to 
negotiate acceptable schemes, hence a high approval or no objection rate.

Page 70



 

4.9 The graph above shows the number of applications for works to trees within the 
Estate Management area.

4.10 In addition to dealing with applications, Members will be aware from reports 
presented to Committee that the landscaping officer will comment on proposals 
that might have an impact on either existing landscaping or will provide an 
opinion on proposed landscaping.  The following graphs show the average 
number of consultations per month is approximately 25. Each of these 
consultations has the potential to consume significant landscape officer time as 
they interrogate tree reports and seek to advise on landscaping improvements to 
proposals.

Page 71



Appeals

4.11 The chart below shows the number of applications and enforcement notices that 
have been allowed, allowed with conditions, dismissed, split decisions (part 
allowed and part refused) and withdrawn at appeal.  This quarter has seen an 
increase in the number of decisions compared to the previous, from 12 to 19. 
Previous reports have noted a trend, over the longer term, towards appeals being 
allowed or allowed with conditions by the Planning Inspectorate. In the most 
recent quarter there were 12 appeals dismissed and 7 that were allowed.  This 
means that the Council has not met its local target for this quarter, but is 
reflective of fluctuating decisions over the last 12 months. 

4.12 As well as the Government monitoring authorities in relation to performance for 
determining applications, it also monitors quality in relation to the number of 
major and non-major applications overturned (i.e. allowed) at appeal.  The 
threshold is for fewer than 10% of major applications overturned at appeal over a 
rolling two-year period.  For authorities who exceed this target, they will be 
classed as ‘poorly performing’ and applications for major developments may be 
made by developers directly to the Planning Inspectorate. 

4.13 As of 1 April 2018 the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government 
(MHCLG) implemented a threshold for quality of decisions for non-major 
applications at 10%.  For clarification, this is 10% of all non-major (i.e. minor and 
others) decisions refused by the Council and subsequently overturned at appeal 
over a rolling two-year period.  The latest statistics collated by MHCLG have 
been published and relate to the two year period between January 2016-
December 2017 (latest available). These figures show that a total of 84 appeals 
have been determined of which 30 were allowed.  Over the same time period 
1,781 applications have been determined.  The percentage is therefore 1.7%.  
The Council is therefore significantly within government’s target and not at risk of 
being classed as poorly performing. 

4.14 Planning appeals can be costly to administer in terms of officer time and expert 
advice. A straightforward householder appeal may take approximately 5 hours of 
officer time to register and respond to, assuming that it follows a written 
representations procedure. However, larger applications that may require a 

Page 72



hearing or public inquiry can run into many thousands of pounds as reported 
previously in the Entech case.

4.15 As well as the cost of administration, the Council must have regard to the 
potential to have costs awarded against it, should it be found that the decision, or 
the Council’s behaviour was unreasonable, a number of such cases have been 
reported to Development Management Committee in recent months.

5 Enforcement

Number of cases received

5.1 Enforcement continues to be busy. However there has been a further slight 
decline in the number of new cases being registered in the last quarter. 

5.2 As with previous quarters, a lot of cases reported are those considered as having 
a less serious impact upon amenity, shown in yellow and red.  

Notices Issued

5.3 The chart below shows the number of notices issued.  The issuing of an 
enforcement notice is the last resort for the Council.  Government guidance 
requires local planning authorities to try to negotiate with a contravener to find 

Page 73



alternative means by which an unacceptable development may be made 
acceptable.  A significant amount of time is spent by the enforcement officers in 
negotiation. However, it can be seen that 6 enforcement notices and 6 planning 
contravention notices have been issued in the last quarter, as well as a single 
breach of condition notice. It is considered that this is a reflection of the effect of 
the Council’s recently appointed new Principal Planning Enforcement Officer.

5.4 There are currently 532 outstanding enforcement cases (both planning and 
Estate Management), some of which are awaiting prosecution, notices to be 
served or, in the case of estate management, for arbitration.  Others are being 
investigated with the aim to find an acceptable resolution for all parties.  The next 
report providing an update on enforcement action taken (i.e. notices issued) will 
be presented to the May Development Management Committee (DMC meeting 
as a Part II (confidential) item.

6 Updates 

6.1 Since the last report, there have been further changes within the Planning team 
and a number of temporary appointments have been made following 
unsuccessful permanent recruitment campaigns. Antoine Commenville has been 
appointed as a Development Management Officer (Agency), Artemis Christophi 
has been appointed as Principal Major Development Officer (Agency). Finally, 
Emily Stainer has been promoted to the position of Development Management 
Officer.

7 Conclusion

7.1 Performance has been largely maintained above required local and national 
levels.  Recruitment remains very challenging but efforts continue to try and 
recruit high quality permanent staff.

Author: Chris Carter (Development Management Service Manager)
Date:  11 April 2019

Page 74


	Agenda
	6 WELWYN RUGBY FOOTBALL CLUB, HOBBS WAY, WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL8 6HX - 6/2017/0225/FULL - RETENTION OF 4 X 15M HIGH FLOODLIGHT COLUMNS AND LAMPS MEASURING A FURTHER 0.5 METRES
	7 12 TOLMERS GARDENS, CUFFLEY, POTTERS BAR, EN6 4JE - 6/2018/3125/FULL - ERECTION OF 8 APARTMENTS FOLLOWING DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUNGALOW
	8 APPEAL DECISIONS
	9 PLANNING UPDATE - FUTURE PLANNING APPLICATIONS
	9b-Appendix 2 Future Applications Cttee Report No Call-In

	10 DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT - JANUARY - MARCH 2019

